
24 June 2013 Agenda
Page 1 of 4

AGENDA
Henderson City Council Short Regular Meeting

Monday, 24 June 2013, 6:00 p.m.
R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building

134 Rose Avenue
Henderson, North Carolina

Mayor and City Council Members
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding

Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey

Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke
Councilmember Vernon L. Brown
Councilmember George M. Daye

City Officials
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. OPENING REMARKS

V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2. The Mayor now inquires as to
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with
respect to matters before the City Council. If any Council Members knows of a conflict of
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time.

1 Core Value 4: Ethical Behavior: We value the public trust and will perform our duties and
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism.

2 Core Value 10: Transparency in Governance: We value transparency in the governance
and operations of the City.



24 June 2013 Agenda
Page 2 of 4

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a) 10 June 2013 Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1]
b) 11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5

VII. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS

Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time. Citizens wishing to address the
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the
meeting. The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor,
come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and
identify the Agenda Item about which you wish to speak on the sign-up sheet. Please
review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this
Agenda.3

IX. OLD BUSINESS

a) Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 13-03, Demolition of 301 Charles Street;
2) Ordinance 13-04, Demolition of 309 Charles Street; 3) Ordinance 13-05,
Demolition of 315 Charles Street; and 4) Ordinance 13-06, Demolition of 318
Rowland Street. (CAF 13-09-A) [See Notebook Tab 2]

 Ordinance 13-03
 Ordinance 13-04
 Ordinance 13-05
 Ordinance 13-06

X. NEW BUSINESS

a) Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 13-38, An Ordinance Amending Chapter
12, Fire Prevention of the Henderson City Code to Provide for a Fee for State
Mandated Fire Inspections; and 2) Ordinance 13-19, Approval of the FY13-14
Annual Operating Budget, Establishing the 2013 Ad Valorem Property Tax Rate and
Approving the Annual Fee Schedule. (CAF 13-B-40) [See Notebook Tab 3]

  ● Ordinance 13-38 
  ● Ordinance 13-19 

b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-35, FY13 Budget Amendment #39,
Annual Year Ending Reconciliation Ordinance. (CAF 13-36) [See Notebook Tab 4]

 ● Resolution 13-35 



24 June 2013 Agenda
Page 3 of 4

c) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-51, Authorizing the Mayor to Execute
an Agreement with ECS Carolinas, LLP to Perform Construction Materials Testing
Services Relative to Planning and Design for Improvements at the Henderson Water
Reclamation Facility, and 2) Ordinance 13-37, FY 2012-2013 Budget Amendment
#40, An Amendment to the CIP Sewer Fund for Post-Bid Estimates. (CAF 13-74)
[See Notebook Tab 5]

 Resolution 13-51
 Ordinance 13-37

d) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-39, FY13 Budget Amendment #41, Budgeting
Proceeds of Lease Purchase Financing Agreement with SunTrust Equipment Finance &
Leasing Corporation. (CAF 13-75) [See Notebook Tab 6]

 Resolution 13-51

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time. Citizens wishing to
address the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the
beginning of the meeting. The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized
by the Mayor, come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city
resident. Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided on the last
page of this Agenda.3

XII. WORK SESSION

a) One Stop Permitting Performance Improvement Team Presentation [No materials]

3 Citizen Comment Guidelines
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters
of concern to them. Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City
Council.
1) Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to
three minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;
2) Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented. Except for the
public hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;
3) Citizens may not yield their time to another person;
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may,
if in order, be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;
5) Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed. Complaints relative to specific individuals are
to be directed to the City Manager;
6) Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted;
and
7) Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the
public comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda.



24 June 2013 Agenda
Page 4 of 4

XIII.REPORTS

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem
b) City Manager

i. Surplus Property Declaration [See Notebook Tab 7]
c) City Attorney
d) City Clerk

i. Calendar Update [See Notebook Tab 8]
ii. E-911 Report

XIV. CLOSED SESSION

a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(4) regarding Attorney/Client Privilege

X. ADJOURNMENT



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 1 of 14

City Council Minutes
Regular Meeting - DRAFT

10 June 2013

PRESENT

Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M.
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke,
Vernon L. Brown, and George M. Daye.

ABSENT

None.

STAFF PRESENT

City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, Jr., City Clerk Esther J.
McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford,
Planning & Community Development Director Erris Dunston, Code Compliance Director
Corey Williams, Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson, Interim Police Chief Marcus Barrow, Main
Street Coordinator Pam Hester, Youth Services Director Donna Stearns, and Recreation
Center Director Crystal Allen.

CALL TO ORDER

The 10 June 2013 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers,
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC.

ROLL CALL

The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Council Member Brenda Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Mayor O’Geary welcomed all and said it was good to see citizens in attendance.



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 2 of 14

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda. There were no
adjustments so Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. Council Member Rainey
moved to accept the Agenda as presented. Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and
unanimously approved.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes. Council
Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of the 13 May Regular Meeting, 20 May Special
Called Meeting; 23 May Budget Work Session #1, 28 May Budget Work Session #2, 30 May
Budget Work Session #3 and 4 June Budget Work Session #4 minutes as presented. Motion
seconded by Council Member Daeke and unanimously approved.

PUBLIC HEARING

FY14 Budget

Before beginning the Public Hearing, Mayor O’Geary reviewed the guidelines for all public
hearings.

City Manager Griffin reviewed the budget process and gave a summary of the consensus
budget as follows:

 64: Regional Water Fund
o Recommended 5% water rate increase was eliminated.

 Elimination of clear-well capital repair project and painting/coating of interior
pipes in water plant.

 31: Sewer Fund
o Recommended 2.5% sewer rate increase was reduced to 1%.

 Elimination of Public Utilities Director position (1/2 of costs)

 30: Water Fund
o Recommended 8% water rate increase was eliminated.

 Elimination of Public Utilities Director position (1/2 of costs) and reduction in
contingency. 5% of increase reduced by virtue of not increasing the Regional
Water rate.

 10: General Fund

o Recommended property tax increase of 8.3 cents was reduced to 3 cents
o Sanitation fee increase of 50 cents was increased to $1.50 from ($27.00 to $28.50)
o Fund balance was increased from zero to $164,300.
o New Fire Inspection Fees, based on square footage and estimated to average

between $55 and $120, was added to budget.



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 3 of 14

o Planning and Zoning Fees increased on average of $100: zoning, variance, special
use, etc.

o $503,300 in expenditure reductions in many budget departments.

A copy of the PowerPoint presentation is incorporated by reference and hereby made part of
these minutes. (See Attachment A)

(Clerk’s Note: Council Member Kearney arrived at 6:07 p.m.)

Council Member Rainey complimented City Manager Griffin for his budget work. He
particularly appreciated the portion of the PowerPoint presentation when Mr. Griffin explained
all income from water sales has to stay in the water fund. Mr. Rainey said he hoped the
newspaper would print this information so citizens would understand the process.

There were no other comments so Mayor O’Geary opened the Public Hearing by asking if
anyone was present who wished to speak regarding the FY14 Budget.

Mr. Sam Watkins, 2106 Woodland Drive Mr. Watkins recognized people and
businesses are all struggling and he asked the prudence prevail as Council searches to find ways
to encourage growth. Mr. Watkins said he is not opposed to taxes but would like them used
appropriately. He said the City has a 12 million dollar library and soon will have an 8 million
dollar performing arts center and he felt a downtown coordinator to assist with growth of
downtown is important.

Mr. David Thomas, 305 Sydney Hill Mr. Thomas addressed Council as the City’s
Airport Authority representative. He thanked Council for its support and said work is expected
to begin mid-July to extend the runway 500 feet with work also being done on the overrun and
lighting of the runway.

Council Member Rainey asked how this would benefit the area. Mr. Thomas responded planes
will now be able to take off with a full load of fuel, and larger planes will be able to land at the
airport. He went on to say the airport currently supports military traffic, prisoner flights from
California and business travel for companies in Henderson and Oxford.

Mr. Jason Stewardson, 128 South Chestnut Street Mr. Stewardson addressed
Council representing the Henderson-Vance Downtown Development Commission (DDC). He
said he understood the difficulties facing Council regarding the budget. He said since Ms. Pam
Hester was hired last year as Main Street Coordinator the DDC has been brought back into
compliance. He felt the full time position is necessary and encouraged Council to retain the
position. He added four (4) new businesses are poised to open; reminded Council of the Hope
VI completion and asked Council to take all of this into consideration as they continue with the
budget process. Mr. Stewardson reminded Council the Hope VI project, which rehabilitated
buildings into apartments, contributed to the tax base saying in 2009 the taxes for one building
were $820 and in 2013 the same building paid taxes of $4,700.

Mr. Phil Hart, 16 Burke Drive Mr. Hart is the incoming chairman for the Henderson-
Vance Downtown Development Commission (DDC). He read a prepared speech which shared
the plans of the DDC for the coming year. The plans included four goals: 1) hearing ideas from



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 4 of 14

downtown merchants; 2) promoting all areas of downtown, expanding events for Halloween,
Christmas and New Year’s celebrations and fundraising ideas such as bringing back the Miss
Henderson pageant and Little Miss Henderson; 3) partnering with local groups and merchants for
additional cleanup work downtown, establishing guidelines for outdoor business signs and
installing new hardware on the new power poles; and 4) economic restructuring by finding ways
to improve existing businesses and use of old structures. He stressed all these services are free
but required a full-time Main Street Manager.

Mr. Stuart Litvin, 935 South Chestnut Mr. Litvin, as a professional certified
community developer, asked Council to look at the Main Street Coordinator/DDC as an
investment rather than an expense.

When no one else indicated a desire to address Council, Mayor O’Geary closed the Public
Hearing and called for a ten (10) minute recess.

After approximately five (5) minutes, Mayor O’Geary called the recessed meeting to order and
asked the Clerk to read the next Public Hearing issue.

Amending the Zoning Map to Change Vance County Tax Map 0221, Block 04, Lot 002
from R20 (Low Density Residential) and R15 (Moderate to Low Density Residential)
Zoning Districts to RA (Residential and Agricultural) Zoning District Located in the ETJ
off Brodie Road 5.00 +/- Acres. (Reference: CAF 13-71; Ordinance 13-32)

City Manager Griffin asked Planning and Community Development Director Erris Dunston to
come forward. Ms. Dunston said Vance County requested this zoning amendment for a
proposed animal shelter. She said one of the allowed uses in a RA district is kennels. This
petition was reviewed and unanimously approved by the Planning Board.

Council Member Daeke asked where the plans placed the entrance and if Julia Avenue residents
had been notified. Ms. Dunston responded all adjacent property owners were notified and
property postings, along with newspaper notices were placed as required. Ms. Dunston added
access from Brodie Road is anticipated.

City Attorney John Zollicoffer, Jr., shared the City cannot bind the County to a Brodie Road
access.

Council Member Kearney asked about the setbacks. Ms. Dunston said 10’ on the sides and 30’
front and back are required.

There was no further discussion so Mayor O’Geary asked if anyone present wished to speak in
favor of this amendment.

Attorney Jonathan Care, 1009 West Montgomery Representing Vance County,
Attorney Care, thanked Council for its consideration of this request. He said there was no
opposition from the Planning Board and went on to say it is currently the intention to create an
access from Brodie Road but added the plans are still being developed. He said the County is
required to provide an animal shelter and it would like to build a new shelter on this property.
Attorney Care said this is good use of the property and it fits the surrounding area.



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 5 of 14

No other citizen came forward so Mayor O’Geary then asked if anyone was present who wished
to speak in opposition to this amendment. No one came forward.

City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., reminded Council that any zoning change affects to entire zone
and Council needs to consider all possible uses when making a change.

Mayor O’Geary then closed the Public Hearing and asked for Council’s pleasure.

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Ordinance 13-32, Amending the Zoning Map to
Change Vance County Tax Map 0221, Block 04, Lot 002 from R20 (Low Density Residential)
and R15 (Moderate to Low Density Residential) Zoning Districts to RA (Residential and
Agricultural) Zoning District Located in the ETJ off Brodie Road 5.00 +/- Acres. Motion
seconded by Council Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Kearney,
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None. (See Ordinance Book 8, p.583)

Amending the Zoning Map to Change Vance County Tax Map 0012, Block 01, Lot 027
from I2 (Industrial Non-Park) District to B2 (Highway Commercial) Zoning District
Located in the City at 903 S. Beckford Drive, 0.84 +/- Acres. (Reference: CAF 13-72;
Ordinance 13-33)

City Manager Griffin asked Planning and Community Development Director Erris Dunston to
summarize this amendment. Ms. Dunston said this request came to the Planning Board from CA
Moloir, LLC to rezone the property on the corner of Dabney Drive and S. Beckford Drive which
would allow for more commercial business. She said the amendment conforms to the land use
plan and reduces setbacks to provide for other uses. Ms. Dunston said this amendment has been
property noticed.

Council Member Daeke asked if proper setbacks are met. Ms. Dunston responded yes.

There was no further discussion. Mayor O’Geary then asked if anyone present wished to speak
in favor of this amendment.

Mr. Stuart Litvin, 935 South Chestnut Street As Director of the Henderson Vance
Economic Development Commission, Mr. Litvin asked Council to support this amendment
change and then introduced a representative from CA Moloir, LLC., Mr. Austin Williams.

Mr. Austin Williams, 8480 Honeycutt Road, Raleigh Mr. Williams told Council CA
Moloir, LLC has purchased 23 Blockbuster facilities, which is downsizing its holdings. The plan
is to lease 2/3 of the property on Beckford Drive to a regional urgent care facility. He added the
company plans to repair the parking lot and building with work beginning shortly.

No other citizen addressed Council so Mayor O’Geary then asked if anyone was present who
wished to speak in opposition to this amendment. No one came forward.

Mayor O’Geary then closed the Public Hearing and asked for Council’s pleasure.



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 6 of 14

City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., again reminded Council that any zoning change affects to entire
zone and Council needs to consider all possible uses when making a change.

Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Ordinance 13-33, Amending the Zoning Map to
Change Vance County Tax Map 0012, Block 01, Lot 027 from I2 (Industrial Non-Park) District
to B2 (Highway Commercial) Zoning District Located in the City at 903 S. Beckford Drive, 0.84
+/- Acres. Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:
YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye and Kearney. NO: None.
ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None. (See Ordinance Book 8, p.585)

Amending the Table of Permitted Uses – Section 310 A.14.11 – Gas Sales of the Zoning
Ordinance to Include Oil Changes, Tire Repair and Inspections as a Permitted Use in the
I2 (Industrial Non-Park), B2 (Highway Commercial), B2A (Highway Commercial Along
the Interstate) and B4 (Neighborhood Business) Zoning Districts and by Special Use Permit
in the B1 (Central Business) District. (Reference: CAF 13-73; Ordinance 13-34)

The City Manager asked Planning and Community Development Director Dunston to summarize
this amendment. Ms. Dunston said this is a change in permitted uses for car maintenance. No
major repairs would occur with this change and said downtown is protected as the changes
would be by special permit only. She said this amendment has been properly noticed.

Council Member Daeke asked for a description of the B1 area. Ms. Dunston said from Andrews
to Spring to Chestnut and back, and Winder to Zene to Montgomery.

Council Member Coffey asked if this change affected a recent request rejected by the Planning
Board. Ms. Dunston said a special use permit would need to be requested and properly
processed through the Board of Adjustment.

City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., summarized the request saying this is for work normally
performed at gas stations.

Mayor O’Geary then asked if anyone present wished to speak in favor of this amendment. No
one came forward so Mayor O’Geary then asked if anyone was present who wished to speak in
opposition to this amendment. No one came forward.

Mayor O’Geary then closed the Public Hearing and asked for Council’s pleasure.

Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of Ordinance 13-34, Amending the Table of

Permitted Uses – Section 310 A.14.11 – Gas Sales of the Zoning Ordinance to Include Oil

Changes, Tire Repair and Inspections as a Permitted Use in the I2 (Industrial Non-Park), B2

(Highway Commercial), B2A (Highway Commercial Along the Interstate) and B4

(Neighborhood Business) Zoning Districts and by Special use Permit in the B1 (Central

Business) District. Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey, and APPROVED by the

following vote: YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney and Coffey.

NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None. (See Ordinance Book 8, p.587)



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 7 of 14

(Clerk’s Note: Council Member Rainey left the meeting at 6:57 p.m. and returned at 7:04 p.m.)

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS

The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to
Council on agenda matters.

NEW BUSINESS

Accepting the CDBG Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Grant and Establishing the
Budget for the Above Mentioned Grant in the Amount of $50,000. (Reference: CAF 13-63;
Resolution 13-45, Ordinance 13-30)

City Manager Griffin began the discussion by reminding Council of prior budget discussions
regarding this grant and whether or not the grant could be administered in-house, and/or
contracted out. He said both Ms. Dunston and he have spoken with a State representative and
Mr. Charlie Thompson, the State’s administrator for the grant program, advised the City may use
the money to supplant an existing employee’s salary for the first year, to pay for training and
travel expenses as well as expenses associated with developing a neighborhood plan. If
accepted, the City will develop an in-house plan as these services cannot be contracted out.

Ms. Dunston added the grant requires hiring a person for FY14 and said $25,000 would come
from staff salary (hers) and $10,000 would come from the grant for training and $5,000 for
planning work.

Council Member Peace-Jenkins asked if Ms. Dunston would do the grant writing. Ms. Dunston
responded yes.

City Manager Griffin noted an error in CAF 13-63 where Spell Check inserted the word
supplement in place of the work supplant in the third paragraph on page 2. Mr. Griffin added
Mr. Thompson has provided Ms. Dunston with verbal acceptance of the City’s grant application.

(Clerk’s note: This error in the CAF has been corrected for the record, reprinted and the
corrected copy placed in the Agenda Package)

Mr. Griffin added $25,000 from Ms. Dunston’s salary/wages may be used for the Flint Hill plans
so as to have adequate reserves for the planning and not create a budget gap for next year when
the grant ends. There was consensus of Council to do this.

Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Resolution 13-45, Accepting the CDBG Talent
Enhancement Capacity Building Grant and Ordinance 13-30, FY13, BA #38, Establishing the
Budget for the Above Mentioned Grant in the Amount of $50,000. Motion seconded by Council
Member Daye and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke,
Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None.
(See Resolution Book 3, p. 191; Ordinance Book 8, p. 579)



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 8 of 14

Requesting the County of Vance to Consider Amending its Tax Collections’ Policies as it
Relates to Delinquent Taxes. (Reference: CAF 13-70; Resolution 13-50)

City Manager Griffin said in response to Council’s recent directive, this is a request to the
County to improve its current policy of collecting back taxes alphabetically to collecting back
taxes by year. The Resolution also suggests hiring a staff attorney to expedite foreclosures.

Council Member Coffey asked if an acceptable percentage could be added. Mr. Griffin
responded the Resolution could be restructured but added the current collection rate is
approximately 93.68% and thought with the new tax/tag process for motor vehicle registration
the collection rate would improve to possibly 95% within the next year or so.

Mayor O’Geary said he thought the County Tax Collector was doing an excellent job and
Council Member Kearney added he thought the target was to collect the oldest taxes first.

There was a brief discussion and City Manager Griffin asked Finance Director Kathy Brafford to
see if she could obtain the amount of delinquent taxes for 2012 to bring back to Council.

Council Member Coffey asked if there is a list of public officials owing taxes. Mr. Griffin said
there is no list legally required.

There was no further discussion. Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Resolution 13-50, Requesting the County of
Vance to Consider Amending its Tax Collections’ Policies as it Relates to Delinquent Taxes.
Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote: YES:
Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey. NO: None.
ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None. (See Resolution Book 3, p. 201)

Providing for the Disposition of Certain Jointly Held Property by the City and County
Otherwise Identified or Located at 601 East Avenue, Vance County Tax Parcel 0079-04002.
(Reference: CAF 13-67; Resolution 13-47)

City Manager Griffin asked Code Compliance Director Corey Williams to explain this request.
Mr. Williams said the County has been approached by an individual who would like to purchase
this property. He said the property is valued at $14,664 and $2,170 is owed in taxes. In order for
the County to continue with the bidding process, the City needs to declare the property surplus.

Council Member Kearney asked what the purchaser planned to do with the property. Mr.
Williams responded he did not know.

City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. said he would draw up the appropriate deed if Council approved
this action.

Mayor O’Geary then asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 13-47, Providing for the Disposition
of Certain Jointly Held Property by the City and County Otherwise Identified or Located at 601



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 9 of 14

East Avenue, Vance County Tax Parcel 0079-04002. Motion seconded by Council Member
Peace-Jenkins and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney,
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey and Peace-Jenkins. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None.
(See Resolution Book 3, p. 195)

Authorizing Remaining Funds to be Used in Conjunction with the Sanitary Sewer
Replacement Project with H. G. Reynolds Company, Inc.. (Reference: CAF 13-68;
Resolution 13-48)

City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier to present this item to
Council. Mr. Frazier reminded Council that this project has replaced many sewer mains and
currently there are dollars left from the contract along with contingency dollars which he
suggests using to complete other streets. If approved, Mr. Frazier will begin discussion with the
contractor to formally decide which streets. Mr. Frazier said he would like to use the funds not
knowing what changes will occur with the State’s FY14 budget.

There was no discussion. Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Resolution 13-48, Authorizing Remaining Funds
to be Used in Conjunction with the Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project with H. G. Reynolds
Company, Inc. Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and APPROVED by the following
vote: YES: Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins and Daeke. NO:
None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None. (See Resolution Book 3, p. 197)

City Manager Griffin took a moment at this time to thank Mr. Frazier and the Public Services
Department staff for their excellent work during the rain storm this past Friday and Saturday. He
said these individuals are unsung heroes because without their good work, roads would have
been impassable.

Approving the Submission of a Letter of Support to the Triangle North Board of Directors
Encouraging More Aggressive Marketing Tactics be Utilized for the Triangle North
Industrial Parks. (Reference: CAF 13-62; Resolution 13-44)

City Manager Griffin said this letter of support does not commit Council to any specific
obligations.

With no discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council.

Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Resolution 13-44, Approving the Submission of
a Letter of Support to the Triangle North Board of Directors Encouraging More Aggressive
Marketing Tactics be Utilized for the Triangle North Industrial Parks. Motion seconded by
Council Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Daye, Kearney, Coffey,
Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Brown. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT:
None. (See Resolution Book 3, pp.189)



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 10 of 14

CONSENT AGENDA

The City Clerk read the Consent Agenda, summarized as follows:

Grant Application for Funding Through the U.S. Department of Justice BJA Justice
Assistance Grant Program for 2013. (Reference: CAF 13-69; Resolution 13-49) This is an
application to fund/replace at least two (2) new In-Car Mobile Camera Audio/Video Recorders
for the police department. (See Resolution Book 3, p. 199)

Declaring that Kerr Lake Water Levels Have Improved and the Voluntary Conservation
Measures are no Longer Required in Accordance with Chapter 15B of the Water Shortage
Response Ordinance. (Reference: CAF 13-66; Resolution 13-46) This removes the water
conservation measures as the water levels are currently sufficient. (See Resolution Book 3, p.
193)

Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of April 2013. (Reference:
CAF 13-64). The Finance Director reviewed the tax releases and refunds and found them
to be in order. (See below)

April 2013 Tax Releases

Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property

Releases

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 6.59$

Crews, William Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 18.61$

Davis, Hall ie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 167.60$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 6.91$

Crews, William Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 19.52$

Davis, Hall ie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 14.53$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 7.24$

Crews, William Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 20.44$

Davis, Hall ie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 95.21$



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 11 of 14

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 7.24$

Crews, Wil liam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 20.44$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 15.21$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 7.24$

Crews, Wil liam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 20.44$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 15.21$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 21.78$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 7.91$

Crews, Wil liam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 22.43$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 18.65$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 32.21$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 8.19$

Crews, Wil liam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 23.22$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 19.31$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 33.35$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 8.19$

Crews, Wil liam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 23.22$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 19.31$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 33.35$

Allen, Jerry W Pro-Rate 2011 (34.78)$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 8.21$

Crews, Wil liam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 23.21$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 19.28$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 33.35$

Sneed, Mary Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2011 34.78$

Branch Exterminating Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2012 1,524.49$

Carter, A T Est & Clark J W Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 8.21$

Crews, Wil liam Thomas Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 23.21$

Davis, Hallie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 19.28$

Evans, Correll G Est Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 33.35$

Nevils, Ralph T III Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2012 16.09$

Pena, Amada Morales Double Bil led 2012 31.62$

Redevelopment Commission Government 2012 1,173.49$

Sneed, Mary Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2012 31.62$

Vance County Pupil Transp. Government 2012 64.17$

Wheeler, Henry Lee Jr. Pers. Prop.Bi lled in Error 2012 31.36$

Total R&P Prop. Releases 3,754.49$



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 12 of 14

Real & Personal Property

Refunds

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Bil led in Error 2008 161.65$

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Bil led in Error 2009 167.37$

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Bil led in Error 2010 167.37$

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Bil led in Error 2011 167.38$

Rogers, John C Real Prop. Bil led in Error 2012 167.38$

Total R&P Prop. Refunds 831.15$

Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Refunds 4,585.64$

Registered Vehicle Releases

Allen, James Wesley Jr. Pro-Rate 2011 1.51$

Person, Torrey Terrence Pro-Rate 2011 3.47$

Wilson, Jacquetta Marie Pro-Rate 2011 11.85$

Belgrave,Gerard John Correct Value 2012 15.97$

Bryant, Alice Faye Pro-Rate 2012 2.21$

Canfield, Joseph Robert Correct 2012 6.57$

Dickerson, Linwood Ray Pro-Rate 2012 5.79$

Dunston, Makecia Rachelle Pro-Rate 2012 1.89$

ETC of Henderson, Inc. Correct Value 2012 12.12$

Faulkner, Roy Hurst Pro-Rate 2012 0.15$

Fields, Beatrice Helen Pro-Rate 2012 24.46$

Green-Bello Carolyne Pro-Rate 2012 13.89$

Hanks, Sandra Nelson Pro-Rate 2012 27.65$

Henderson Family YWCA Charitable All O 2012 109.45$

James, Thomas Paul Correct Value 2012 6.14$

Kerr Area Transportation Auth Charitable All O 2012 390.25$

Lemay Tashon Nakia Pro-Rate 2012 7.15$

Marrow, Chiquita Marie Pro-Rate 2012 7.26$

Morgan, Will iam Joshua Correct Value 2012 94.17$

Person, Torrey Terrence Pro-Rate 2012 18.02$

Pettaway, Bryan Oneal Military Non Resident 2012 144.78$

Soto, Irma Santiago Correct Situs 2012 30.83$

Teeter, Charles Lavette, Jr. Transfer Out 2012 108.32$

Til lman, Richard Gary Pro-Rate 2012 65.81$

Townes, Vernon Lee Transfer Out 2012 130.33$



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 13 of 14

Mayor O’Geary asked if anyone wished to remove an item from the Consent Agenda. There
were no requests. Mayor O’Geary asked for a motion to approve the consent Agenda

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of the Consent Agenda as presented. Motion
seconded by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Kearney,
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye. NO: None. ABSTAIN:
None. ABSENT: None.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

City Clerk McCrackin advised no citizen wished to address City Council.

REPORTS

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report)
b) City Manager

Mr. Griffin said Mr. Gill did an excellent job in preparing a packet of information regarding the
School Superintendent’s request for school staff to use the Aycock Center. Although Mr. Gill

Troutman, Will iam Marlin Transfer Out 2012 72.54$

Vallejo, Joel Gerrado Pro-Rate 2012 6.55$

Vann, Michael Dale Correct Value 2012 115.53$

Variety Wholesale Inc. Pro-Rate 2012 161.14$

Walton, Charles Edward Correct Situs 2012 153.73$

Yarborough, Martin Antonio Pro-Rate 2012 2.55$

Total Releases 1,752.08$

Registered Vehicle

Refunds

Eaton, Jonah Marshall Pro-Rate 2012 9.13$

Hargrove, Darrica Jean Pro-Rate 2012 15.64$

Hargrove, John III Pro-Rate 2012 2.94$

Holt, Karen Edwards Pro-Rate 2012 1.40$

Jefferson, Tiffany Pro-Rate 2012 8.88$

M R Williams Pro-Rate 2012 66.50$

Neal, Demarcus Jerron Pro-Rate 2012 17.76$

Townes, Lawanda Renee Reg. Veh. Billed In Error 2012 92.19$

Vallejo, Joel Gerrado Pro-Rate 2012 6.74$

Vick, Frederick Earl J. Pro-Rate 2012 3.64$

Wardrett, Brenda Faye Pro-Rate 2012 15.28$

West, Kristen Leigh Pro-Rate 2012 7.92$

Williams, Alfreda Pro-Rate 2012 11.56$

Total Reg Veh Refunds 259.58$

Total Reg Veh Releases

& Refunds 2,011.66$

Total All Releases & Refunds 6,597.30$



Minute Book 42
10 June 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes

Page 14 of 14

has still not received the requested information, and as school employees are State employees,
Mr. Griffin said Council could choose to grant school employees free access to Aycock Center,
or carry the issue forward to the next regular Council meeting.

Council Member Kearney addressed the financial impact and suggested a twelve month trial
period which would give Mr. Gill time to gather data.

Council Member Coffey felt there would not be a “flood” of school staff using the facility and
Council Member Daeke agreed that the request should be reviewed in June of 2014.

Motion was made by Council Member Kearney to allow Vance County School Employees use of
the Aycock Center with a data review in June 2014. Motion was seconded by Council Member
Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins,
Daeke, Brown, Daye and Kearney. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None.

c) City Attorney (No Report)

d) City Clerk (No Report)

Council Member Daye brought up an issue regarding a fallen tree. Mr. Griffin asked Mr. Daye
to give the details to Assistant City Manager Frazier following the meeting.

Council Member Kearney asked if the issue of street lights should be discussed this evening or at
the next Work Session saying he knows of several areas that he would like to have better lit to
help combat crime. Mr. Griffin said it would be best discussed at the next Work Session.

Council Member Daeke said the Ducky Derby date has been set for 21 September.

With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn.

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment. Motion seconded by Council Member Daye,
and was unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned 7:32 p.m.

____________________________
James D. O’Geary
Mayor

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk



Minute Book 42
11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5 Minutes

Page 1 of 9

City Council Minutes
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #5 - DRAFT

11 June 2013

PRESENT

Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M.
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon
L. Brown and George M. Daye.

ABSENT

None.

STAFF PRESENT

City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther J.
McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Engineering Director Peter Sokalski, Planning
and Community Development Director Erris Dunston, Human Resources Director Cathy Brown
and Youth Services Director Donna Stearns.

CALL TO ORDER

The 11 June 2013 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #5 was called to order by
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers,
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC.

ROLL CALL

The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.

OPENING REMARKS

Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone to this work session.



Minute Book 42
11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5 Minutes

Page 2 of 9

CAR PARK ITEMS

City Manager Griffin distributed a chart showing property tax levies from 2003 to 2012. This is
part of the information requested by Council during the 10 June meeting (from page 120 from
the 2012 Audit). Mr. Griffin said Finance Director Kathy Brafford has requested more current
data which will be distributed once the information is received from the County Tax Department.

Mr. Griffin said Council Member Daeke called earlier today and asked Mr. Griffin share with
Council he has a prior speaking engagement this evening at the Optimist Club and once that
concludes, he will join this meeting. Mr. Griffin added Mr. Daeke wished Council to know it is
his desire to restore funds for the DDC.

GENERAL FUND DISCUSSION

City Manager Griffin began this discussion by summarizing where Council left off with the
acceptance of the spreadsheet as a draft consensus of the budget which removed $503,300 from
the proposed budget and made changes to some of the revenue. Council wanted to hold off on
making any further changes until citizens had an opportunity to offer input during the 10 June
Budget Hearing. At this time he turned the meeting back to the Mayor and Council for
discussion regarding the General Fund.

Council Member Coffey summarized the Budget Hearing meeting by saying there certainly was
no input from citizens.

Council Member Kearney added the input supported the DDC. He said the other issue
outstanding was the $20,000 for post season play with the Recreation Department. Mr. Kearney
added Council Member Brown is passionate about including that amount in the budget. He said
he would like to see Council find a way to reinstate both into the budget and reminded Council
of his suggestion to raise property taxes by 4 cents. He also understood there are other options to
obtain this goal.

Council Member Brown asked how much a ½ cent increase would bring. Mr. Griffin responded
approximately $44,500. Mr. Griffin added the gap is $73,400.

Council Member Coffey asked what the $10,000 for contributions in the DDC budget is used for.
Ms. Dunston responded it is used for items such as having Christmas lights installed, promoting
events, and website work. Ms. Coffey asked if anyone has asked the County to contribute more
since they benefit from this also. Ms. Dunston said she is unaware of any formal request.

Council Member Inscoe asked for further clarification regarding the operations costs. Mr.
Griffin said it included items such as $300 for telephone; $100 for internet data services; $1,200
for utilities (lighting the mural); $500 for travel and schools; $400 for liability; $500 for supplies;



Minute Book 42
11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5 Minutes

Page 3 of 9

$200 for maintenance; $300 for dues and subscriptions; $100 for public officials liability and
$700 for workers comp. Ms. Coffey asked about equipment repair. Ms. Dunston responded it is
for things like replacing Christmas lights.

Council Member Inscoe had a comment about the DDC saying for a successful downtown, he
felt the downtown merchants really need to be involved and there should be a merchant
membership fee. He felt they should pay for part of what the City now provides. He did not see
value in lighting the mural and felt the $1,200 could be cut from the budget. Ms. Dunston said
the mural on Montgomery Street is the only one lit at night and believes it was first lit in the
1980’s. She added the DDC has had discussions regarding re-doing the murals as they need to
be refreshed. Council Member Coffey asked if Thomas’s Appliance pays for any of the lighting
costs since it is on the side of their building. Ms. Dunston responded no and Mr. Griffin added it
is a downtown initiative of public art. Mr. Griffin said it is up to Council whether they wish to
continue to light the mural. Mayor O’Geary said the art work definitely needs to be re-done.

Mayor O’Geary asked for a consensus of Council to discontinue lighting the mural on
Montgomery Street with all seven Council Members voting to discontinue the lighting of the
mural.

Council Member Coffey requested that when the City can afford it, that the mural be redone.

Council Member Rainey asked when the new poles are scheduled to be installed downtown.
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier said he spoke to a Duke Energy Progress representative
recently who said they have run into issues with lead abatement on the existing poles but they
anticipate starting within the next month. He added there will be some increase in the electrical
costs because of the teardrop light fixtures.

City Manager Griffin refocused the discussion by saying the removal of the $1,200 for lighting
brings the gap to $72,200. He said the options are to either raise the property tax as suggested by
Mr. Kearney, or cut operating costs elsewhere in the budget. The question is how Council would
like to do this.

Council Member Rainey asked about business (privilege) licenses and the increase in the fire
inspection fees. He said he knows of a business owner who does not have a business license and
asked who is exempt and if there is a list of who is current. Mr. Griffin said the firemen check
for business licenses when they do inspections. He said the ordinance regarding privilege
licenses is totally outdated and indicated retaining authority for these licenses may be changed by
the General Assembly. He said if the City retains authority, it needs to be completely
overhauled. He added due to limited resources, it has been difficult to keep this current. Mr.
Rainey asked if licenses are issued by calendar year or fiscal year. Mr. Griffin responded the
bills go out in May and are due in June for the current year. Council Member Inscoe said he
recently met with a business owner who had never seen a license fee of $5.00. The owner
expected a fee of $500 which shows how current license fees are out of line Mr. Griffin said this
is an area that has been inconsequential to the overall budget (approximately $85,000 to $90,000



Minute Book 42
11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5 Minutes

Page 4 of 9

a year) until the opening of internet cafes and now that the cafés are closing, it will go back to
providing minimum revenue. He feels the key way to fix this is to review the Code for more
meaningful revenue and also to find a way to enforce the Code. Mayor O’Geary suggested this
be added to a future work session.

Council Member Inscoe asked what the status of the PIT (Performance Enhancement Team) is
regarding streamlining the permit process. Mr. Griffin said Ms. Dunston, as team leader, is
scheduled to address Council at the June Work Session.

Council Member Kearney said he originally proposed a 4 cent property tax increase but now
feels a 3.8 cent increase would work and asked the Mayor to call for a consensus regarding a 3.8
cent tax increase to cover the recreation travel and the DDC.

Mayor O’Geary asked Council for a consensus regarding a 3.8 cent property tax increase with
the following results: YES: Kearney, Peace-Jenkins, Brown and Daye. NO: Coffey, Inscoe
and Rainey.

Council Member Inscoe then asked about the $2,100 laptop request by the Garage and Council
Member Coffey asked where staff obtains their pricing for budgeting. Engineering Director
Sokalski responded the laptop is a rugged laptop as it will be used at a workstation and said the
standard fee for an HP with license is $1,000 to $1,200. Mr. Griffin added the additional amount
is for printer cartridges. Assistant City Manager Frazier added the laptop is new to replace a
desktop so data can be entered as work is completed in the garage to provide more accurate data.

Council Member Inscoe asked the City Manager how much the General Fund budget increased
from FY13. Mr. Griffin said approximately $302,508 not including the $1,200 for the mural
lighting. Mr. Inscoe asked how much of the $302,508 is mandated by the State. Mr. Griffin said
he did not have the exact number available at this time, but said two sources are the
unemployment payroll tax newly instituted by the State is included and also the joint programs
with the County of $43,000. The Board of Elections increase is the majority of the County
increase. After further discussion, Mr. Griffin asked the Mayor for a short break to compile the
information Council requested.

Council Member Kearney asked why a 4/3 vote is not considered a majority. Mr. Griffin said a
simple majority will carry an approval for a budget per City Attorney John Zollicoffer, Jr. He
said if Council was voting to approve the budget this evening a 4/3 vote would carry but the
Mayor only asked for a consensus.

During the recess, Council Member Coffey asked if the City is reimbursed for when they work
events such as the annual car show. Mr. Frazier responded he know reimbursement for the street
workers has been received from Vance County Tourism after the car show.



Minute Book 42
11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5 Minutes

Page 5 of 9

When Mr. Griffin returned, he said the estimate for the new unemployment payroll tax, not
including Youth Services which is 100% grant reimbursable, is $77, 200. He said this tax is on
people not positions, so the more turnover the more the City will have to pay out.

Council Member Inscoe than asked about the reduction in the call-back time. Mr. Griffin said
$25,000 remains for call-back time which is a reduction for the departmental request of $80,000
and the Manager’s request of $50,000. He also reminded Council the cost to reinstate the Fire
Fighter position is $37,000 (including benefits). Discussion pursued as to why the call-back time
is more even with another staff member and Mr. Griffin said it depends on how many calls and
how many staff are required to respond. It is difficult to anticipate what the year will bring. Mr.
Griffin went on to say the Police and Fire departments spend the most on overtime because they
roll 24/7 and depending on the nature of the call, they use either comp time or overtime.

Council Member Coffey asked about joining the County and City fire departments. Mr. Griffin
said Council Member Inscoe, as liaison to the County, has had conversations with his
counterpart, the County Commissioner Hester, about this; however, it was the County that
withdrew from a previous joint effort and he did not know if the County is interested or the time
it would take to reestablish joint fire departments.

Council Inscoe then confirmed the conversation saying there was an increase of $265,008 and
$43,000 of that is for the joint programs and unemployment at $77,200. He said this portion of
the FY14 budget increased approximately $145,000 over the FY13 budget.

City Manager Griffin said about one quarter of the General Fund departments went into the
Recommended Budget at or below the FY13 budget funding.

Council Member Kearney asked since he was unable to attend a couple of previous meetings if
this is a rehash of previous conversations and asked if he understood correctly that $77,200 is the
gap Council is trying to accommodate.

Vance County Shared Programs

At this point, City Manager Griffin asked Council to review the Vance County Shared Programs
in the Budget Workbook. He quickly reviewed these programs by pointing out the increases in
the Tax Office, 911 and the Board of Elections. There was no change in the Library because of
the inter-local agreement change.

Council Member Coffey asked why the Board of Elections increased. Mr. Griffin said the
$67,500 is the County’s estimate for the general election which will be held in November in
which the City will have four (4) Council seats available for election.



Minute Book 42
11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5 Minutes

Page 6 of 9

Non-Departmental Funds

Mr. Griffin then provided Council with the details of the Non-Departmental funds by saying
$367,000 of personnel expense is insurance for retirees. The increase from FY13 is due to
additional retirees. There is $20,000 for unemployment compensation claims.

Council Member Kearney returned the conversation to the tax increase by saying he felt Council
was within $8.00 a year for a property valued at $100,000. He said the Manager responded to
Council’s request and removed $503,000 +/- from the General Fund and Council had already
found $145,000 to reduce the Recommended Budget and his thought is to move on and take care
of the $8.00 issue. Mr. Kearney felt what was already in place should be left and said he hoped
Council Member Daeke would arrive to vote so perhaps Council could move on to adoption of
the FY14 budget.

Council Member Brown said no one wants to raise taxes but he felt from comments during the
Public Hearing that the DDC is important to take downtown to the next level. He also
commented about the Recreation and said he felt if the funds were removed it would take away
incentive and joy from the kids participating. Mr. Brown felt a penny more on the property tax
would benefit the community. He also said if a citizen stepped forward to pick up the recreation
cost, then he would like to see the extra dollars from the tax increase go toward rebuilding the
Fund Balance. Council Member Rainey commented that although parents/citizens say don’t
raise my taxes, they are also the ones that ask why their son/daughter are not given an award.

Council Member Coffey suggested adding $0.50 to the sanitation fee because out of fairness,
everyone pays for garbage collection but not everyone pays property taxes.

Council Member Inscoe said there has been discussion about how the tax increase will affect a
$100,000 property owner but the ten largest tax payers are businesses and reminded everyone
that the Hospital is currently appealing its tax assessment. If the appeal lowers its tax, there will
be less dollars coming in next year.

Powell Bill

City Manager Griffin said Council Member Daeke should arrive shortly and until he arrives,
suggested Council look at the minor funds such as the Powell Bill. This revenue is shared
throughout the State and comes from the State gas tax. Mr. Griffin does not expect this fund to
increase in FY14. These monies are mainly used for street and sidewalk repair. It can also be
used for a portion of salaries in the Public Services Department.

There were no questions regarding the Powell Bill.



Minute Book 42
11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5 Minutes

Page 7 of 9

Trust Agency Funds

City Manager Griffin said these three funds contribute nothing, financially speaking, to the basic
budget and began reviewing the Public Library Trust Fund by saying there has been no action as
this is a joint fund. The LEO Pension Fund had no action as it is paid for as we go out of the
General Fund.

Council Member Inscoe asked for the balance in the Elmwood Cemetery account. Mr. Griffin
responded $430,210. Mr. Inscoe asked if the monies could be used for improvements. Mr.
Griffin said only the interest can be used and went on to say the City Attorney has looked at this
previously and found the principle can only be invested but the interest can be used. Council
Member Rainey returned to the Cemetery fund and asked if the fund is in an interest bearing
account, what type of interest it earns and if the dollars could be transferred to an account to earn
more interest. Mr. Griffin responded it is currently in a cash management trust fund and added
the City cannot even obtain 1% on $2M dollars. He explained public funds have certain
restrictions.

He said public funds, as opposed to general funds, have to be put into secure accounts which
might yield one quarter of one percent.

Council Member Coffey asked about instituting a hotel tax. Mr. Griffin said the authority to
create this tax has to come from the General Assembly. He said authorization has been
requested two years in a row with no approval.

Council Member Kearney asked what cemetery plots cost. Assistant City Manager Frazer said
$750.

Council Member Coffey verified grass cutting at the cemetery cannot come from the Cemetery
Fund. Mr. Griffin said the interest can be used but not the principle.

Capital Reserve Fund

Mr. Griffin now directed attention to the Capital Reserve Fund and said the General Fund here
has not had any activity in some time. He said right now this is a place holder. He said the
Economic Development section of the Capital Reserve Fund did not receive any contribution this
year.

General Fund, Continued

Council Member Coffey now asked if the Mayor would ask for a consensus regarding the
additional $0.50 sanitation fee increase, which would bring the sanitary fee to $29.00.



Minute Book 42
11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5 Minutes

Page 8 of 9

Mayor O’Geary called for a consensus of Council regarding a $29.00 sanitation fee with the
following results: YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins and Daye. NO: Kearney, Rainey and
Brown.

(Clerk’s Note: Council Member Daeke arrived at 7:32 p.m.)

To benefit Council Member Daeke, Mr. Griffin reviewed the discussion so far by saying Council
would like to keep both the DDC and the $20,000 Recreation expenses in the budget. Council

Member Kearney suggested increasing the property tax to 3.8 cents and Council Member Coffey
suggested increasing the sanitation fee to $29.00.

Council Member Daeke agreed with reinstating the DDC because after hearing the presentations
at the Public Hearing he felt more had been accomplished than he was aware of. He said the
$20,000 was the easiest to cut but it was also tough to cut. He added he agreed with
discontinuing the mural lighting.

Another consensus was called for increasing the property tax by 3.5 cents and the sanitation fee
to $29.00 with the following results. YES: Kearney, Coffey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and
Daye. NO: Inscoe and Rainey.

Council Member Daeke then summarized the overall consensus by saying the property tax
increased by 3.5 cents; 1% Sewer increase; 0% Water increase; removal of the $1,200 for light
the mural. Mr. Griffin said $53,400 was removed from the budget and $52,200 was added back
which restores the DDC staffing and leaves just enough for the department to operate.

Council Member Brown asked for the total amount brought by the 3.5 cent increase and the
$0.50. Mr. Griffin responded $74,000 to which Mr. Brown said the lighting of the mural could
be reinstated if desired. Council Members Coffey and Kearney said the overall feeling was the
lighting was not important and it was decided to use those dollars for other issues.

City Manager Griffin asked if Council felt a need to continue with future work session meetings.
If not, he said the City Clerk will properly notice the meeting cancellations. He also added if
Council cancels the meetings and then wishes to schedule a meeting for further discussion, he
would need to know as soon as possible so the meeting could be properly noticed.

Mayor O’Geary asked for a consensus of Council whether to meet further regarding the FY14
budget with the results being as follows: YES: Coffey. NO: Daye, Brown, Daeke, Peace-
Jenkins, Rainey, Inscoe and Kearney. According to the consensus, the City Clerk will cancel all
scheduled Budget Work Sessions between now and 24 June Short Regular Session.

Mayor O’Geary said there is now a budget consensus and asked if there were any further
concerns or questions before adjourning the meeting. No further concerns or comments were
expressed by anyone.



Minute Book 42
11 June 2013 Budget Work Session #5 Minutes

Page 9 of 9

Mayor O’Geary then asked if Council was prepared to adjourn.

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Brown moved for adjournment. Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-
Jenkins and unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned at 7:54 p.m.

____________________________
James D. O’Geary
Mayor

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 1 of 18

________________________________________
17 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager
RE: CAF: 13-09-A

Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 13-03, Demolition of 301 Charles Street; 2)
Ordinance 13-04, Demolition of 309 Charles Street; 3) Ordinance 13-05, Demolition of 315
Charles Street; and 4) Ordinance 13-06, Demolition of 318 Rowland Street

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Goals Addressed By This Item:

 KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition of and expansion of the
Housing Stock.

o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in the rehabilitation
and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated housing in order to remove
blight.

Recommendation

Approval of:
 1) Ordinance 13-03, Demolition of 301 Charles Street
 2) Ordinance 13-04, Demolition of 309 Charles Street;
 3) Ordinance 13-05, Demolition of 315 Charles Street
 4) Ordinance 13-05, Demolition of 318 Rowland Street

Executive Summary

The City Council has issued three, ninety (90) day extensions (Stay Agreements) for the properties
located at 301 Charles Street, 309 Charles Street, 315 Charles Street, and 318 Rowland Street owned by
Louis Medina and wife Veronica Medina. The first extension (Stay Agreement) was issued on 27 August
2012, the second extension on 10 December 2013 and the third extension on 25 March 2013. The
objective each time an extension was granted was to allow the owner time to repair/ renovate structures.

The structures are secured and the debris from the accessory structures in the rear of 318 Rowland Street
has been removed. However, structures remain dilapidated and no sign of construction/renovation. The
properties are dilapidated and causing blight within the neighborhood, it is recommended that orders of
demolition be approved at this time. Also attached is a bid tabulation sheet for the estimated cost of
demolition.

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430-5701

Agenda Item: _________

Council Meeting: 24 June 13 Short Reg. Meeting



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 2 of 18

Enclosures:
1. Ordinance 13-03
2. Ordinance 13-04
3. Ordinance 13-05
4. Ordinance 13-09
5. Pictures of Structures
6. Bid Tabulation
7. Timeline



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 3 of 18

ORDINANCE 13-03

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or
unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):

Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and

WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the
structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with
G.S. §160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on January 5,
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and

WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code
Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for
human habitation;

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that:

Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard
containing the legend;

“This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; the use or occupation of
this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on the structure located at the
following address:

301 Charles Street / Deed Book 1103 Page 482 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance
County Tax Parcel 0073 04004 in the City of Henderson, N.C.

Section 2. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to
remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners
thereof dated the 5th day of January 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures
Ordinance and G.S. §160A-443.

Section 3. Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code
Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 4 of 18

surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by
G.S. §160A-446(6).

Section 4. The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter
§160A.

Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public
health, safety and welfare.

Section 6. This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.

The foregoing Ordinance 13-03, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by
Council Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following
votes and was ** on this the ** day of ----------- 2013: YES: . NO:. ABSENT: . ABSTAIN: .

________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference: Minute Book 42, p.



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 5 of 18

301 Charles Street

Photo Taken June 17, 2013



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 6 of 18

ORDINANCE 13-04

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or
unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):

Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and

WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the
structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with
G.S. 160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on January 5,
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and

WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code
Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for
human habitation.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that:
Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard
containing the legend; “This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare;
the use or occupation of this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on
the structure located at the following address:

309 Charles Street / Deed Book 1103 Page 482 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance
County Tax Parcel 0073 04005 in the City of Henderson, N.C.

Section 2. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to
remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners
thereof dated the 5th day of January 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures
Ordinance and G.S. 160A-443.

Section 3. Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code
Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a
surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by
G.S. 160A-446(6).



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 7 of 18

Section 4. The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter
160A.

Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public
health, safety and welfare.

Section 6. This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.

The foregoing Ordinance 13-04, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by
Council Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following
votes and was ** on this the ** day of ----------- 2013: YES: . NO:. ABSENT: . ABSTAIN: .

Mayor James D. O'Geary

ATTEST:

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 8 of 18

309 Charles Street

Photo Taken June 17, 2013



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 9 of 18

ORDINANCE 13-05

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE
PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or
unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):

Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and

WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the
structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with
G.S. 160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on January 5,
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and

WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code
Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for
human habitation.

NOW, “THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that:

Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard
containing the legend;

“This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; the use or occupation of
this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on the structure located at the
following address:

315 Charles Street / Deed Book 1103 Page 482 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance
County Tax Parcel 0073 04006 in the City of Henderson, N.C.

Section 2. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to
remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners
thereof dated the 5th day of January 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures
Ordinance and G.S. §160A-443.

Section 3. Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code
Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any
merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 10 of 18

surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by
G.S. §160A-446(6).

Section 4. The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter
§160A.

Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public
health, safety and welfare.

Section 6. This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.

The foregoing Ordinance 13-05, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by Council
Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and
was ** on this the ** day of ----------- 2013: YES: . NO:. ABSENT: . ABSTAIN: .

Mayor James D. O'Geary

ATTEST:

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 11 of 18

315 Charles Street

Photo Taken June 17, 2013



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 12 of 18

ORDINANCE 13-06

AN ORDINANCE DIRECTING THE CODE COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR TO REMOVE
OR DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE HEREIN DESCRIBED AS HAZARDOUS TO THE

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND DIRECTING THAT A NOTICE
BE PLACED THEREON THAT THE SAME MAY NOT BE OCCUPIED.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that all owners and parties of interest (whether known or
unknown) in the structure described herein are the following (including spouses):

Luis Medina and wife, Veronica Medina

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Henderson finds that the structure described herein
is hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City under the City
Abandoned Structure Ordinance, and that all of the procedures of the Abandoned
Structures Ordinance have been complied with; and

WHEREAS, the owners of this structure have been given a reasonable opportunity to bring the
structure up to the standards of the Abandoned Structure Ordinance in accordance with
G.S. 160A-443(5) pursuant to an order issued by the Code Administrator on January 5,
2012 and the owners have failed to comply with the order; and

WHEREAS, the structure should be removed or demolished, as directed by the Code
Administrator, and should be placarded by placing thereon a notice prohibiting use for
human habitation;

NOW, “THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, that:

Section 1. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to place a placard
containing the legend;

“This building is hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare; the use or occupation of
this building for human habitation is prohibited and unlawful” on the structure located at the
following address:

318 Rowland Street / Deed Book 1103 Page 482 Vance County Register of Deeds / Vance
County Tax Parcel 0073 04002 in the City of Henderson, N.C.

Section 2. The Code Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to proceed to
remove or demolish the above described structure in accordance with his/her order to the owners
thereof dated the 5th day of January 2012 and in accordance with the Abandoned Structures
Ordinance and G.S. 160A-443.

Section 3. Upon completion of the required removal or demolition, the Code
Administrator shall reasonably dispose of any merchantable materials and shall sell any



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 13 of 18

merchantable materials of the structure and credit the proceeds against the cost of the removal or
demolition. The Code Administrator shall certify the remaining balance to the Tax Collector. If a
surplus remains after sale of the demolition, the Code Compliance Director shall deposit the
surplus in the Superior Court where it shall be secured and disbursed in the manner provided by
G.S. 160A-446(6).

Section 4. The Cost of removal or demolition and any landfill fees associated therewith
constitutes a lien against the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The amount of the
lien shall be filed in the office of the County Tax Collector, and shall have the same priority and
be collected in the same manner as the lien for special assessments in Article 10 of G.S. Chapter
160A.

Section 5. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or cause to be removed the
placard from any building to which it is affixed. It shall likewise be unlawful for any person to
occupy or to permit the occupancy of any building therein declared to be hazardous to the public
health, safety and welfare.

Section 6. This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption.

The foregoing Ordinance 13-09, upon motion of Council Member ** and seconded by
Council Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following
votes and was ** on this the ** day of ----------- 2013: YES: . NO:. ABSENT: . ABSTAIN: .

Mayor James D. O'Geary

ATTEST:

Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 14 of 18

318 Rowland Avenue



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 15 of 18

Photo Taken June 17, 2013



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 16 of 18

Bid Tabulation



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 17 of 18

Abandoned Structure Enforcement Check List(Timeline)



CAF 13-09-A: 24 June 2013 Council Meeting
Page 18 of 18



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 1 of 34

18 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council

FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager

RE: CAF: 13—B—40
Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 13-38, An Ordinance Amending Chapter
12, Fire Prevention of the Henderson City Code to Provide for a Fee for State
Mandated Fire Inspections; and 2) Ordinance 13-19, Approval of the FY13-14 Annual
Operating Budget, Establishing the 2013 Ad Valorem Property Tax Rate and
Approving the Annual Fee Schedule.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Goals Addressed By This Item:

 KSO 8: To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay necessary to
meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities.

Recommendation:

Approval of:
 1) Ordinance 13-38, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 12, Fire Prevention of the

Henderson City Code to Provide for a Fee for State Mandated Fire Inspections; and
 2) Ordinance 13-19, Approval of the FY13-14 Annual Operating Budget, Establishing the

2013 Ad Valorem Property Tax Rate and Approving the Annual Fee Schedule

Executive Summary

City Council has conducted five (5) budget work sessions and conducted one (1) public hearing as
it has reviewed the FY14 Recommended Budget. A Consensus Budget was approved during the
fifth budget work session held on 11 June.

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item:

Council Meeting: 24 June 2013 Reg Meeting



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 2 of 34

The major changes to the final Consensus Budget vis-à-vis the draft Consensus Budget taken to the
public hearing are listed below:

 The property tax rate was increased from 3 cents to 3.5 cents, or 62 cents.
 The sanitation fee was increased from $28.50 to $29.00.
 The increased revenues mentioned above were used to restore funding for the DDC office

and $20,000 for recreation travel for youth end-season sports tournaments, with any
remaining amount to be credited against the fund balance appropriation.

A summary of the final Consensus Budget vis-à-vis the Recommended Budget is provided below:

 64: Regional Water Fund
o Recommended 5% water rate increase was eliminated.

 Elimination of clear-well capital repair project and painting/coating of interior
pipes in water plant.

 31: Sewer Fund
o Recommended 2.5% sewer rate increase was reduced to 1%.

 Elimination of Public Utilities Director position (1/2 of costs)
 30: Water Fund

o Recommended 8% water rate increase was eliminated.
 Elimination of Public Utilities Director position (1/2 of costs) and reduction in

contingency. 5% of increase reduced by virtue of not increasing the Regional
Water rate.

 10: General Fund
o Recommended property tax increase of 8.3 cents was reduced to 3.5 cents. The tax rate

will increase from 58.5 cents to 62 cents.
o Sanitation fee increase of 50 cents was increased to $2.00. The sanitation fee will

increase from $27.00 to $29.00.
o Fund balance was increased from zero to $153,000.
o New Fire Inspection Fees, based on square footage and estimated to average between

$55 and $120, was added to budget.
o Planning and Zoning Fees increased on average of $100: zoning, variance, special use,

etc.
o $431,000 in expenditure reductions across the various budget departments.

Ordinance 13-38 has the effect of enabling the levying of the new fee for State mandated fire
inspections. Ordinance 13-19 has the effect of approving the FY14 Budget based on the final
Consensus Budget figures as approved at the 11 June budget work session. It also serves to
establish the tax rate for the new fiscal year as well as affirm and re-adopt the annual fee schedule
and the utilities and general multi-year capital improvement plans.

The FY14 Budget must be adopted not later than the end of June.

Enclosures:
1. Ordinance 13-38
2. Ordinance 13-19



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 3 of 34

ORDINANCE 13-38

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, FIRE PREVENTION

OF THE HENDERSON CITY CODE

TO PROVIDE FOR A FEE FOR STATE MANDATED FIRE INSPECTIONS

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain:

Section 1. That a new section be added to the City Code designated as Section 12-5 reading as

follows:

“Section 12-5: State Mandated Fire Inspections Fee

A fee for the inspection of buildings and facilities as mandated by the State of North
Carolina is hereby established. Said fee is variable based on the square footage of the
facility being inspected. The City Council may set the fee from time-to-time as it deems
appropriate, with said fee being more fully articulated in the Annual Fee Schedule.”

Section 2. The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect as of July 1, 2013.

The foregoing Ordinance 13-38, upon motion of Council member __________________

and seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call

vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ___ day

of ______________, 2013: YES: . NO: . ABSTAIN: . ABSENT: .

____________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference: Minute Book 4**, p. **.



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 4 of 34

_______________________________________

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
CITY OF HENDERSON

I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-38, An Ordinance
Amending Chapter 12, Fire Prevention of the Henderson City Code to Provide for a Fee for State
Mandated Fire Inspections, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ** **
20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.)

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 20**.

_________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk
City of Henderson, North Carolina



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 5 of 34

O R D I N A N C E 13—19

APPROVAL OF THE FY 13-14 ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET,
ESTABLISHING THE 2013 AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX RATE AND

APPROVING THE ANNUAL FEE SCHEDULE

WHEREAS, pursuant to North Carolina General Statues 159-13, the State of North Carolina
requires its local governments to operate on a 1 July – 30 June fiscal year basis; and

WHEREAS, said State law further requires local governments adopt a balanced budget not later
than 1 July; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager presented the FY 13-14 Recommended Budget to the City Council
on Monday, 20 May 2013 and subsequent to the Budget Presentation, City Council met in
several budget work sessions to discuss the budget and to make changes as it deemed
appropriate and necessary for the public health, safety and welfare; and

WHEREAS, the City Council heard comments from the public during its duly advertised Budget
Hearing on Monday, 10 June 2013; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, after receiving public comments throughout the budget review
process and Budget Hearing, and deliberating the various budgetary issues, has achieved
consensus on the FY 13-14 Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby
approve:

 The FY 13-14 Budget; and

 Establishes the 2013 Ad Valorem property tax rate; and

 Increases the Sewer rate; and

 Increases the monthly Sanitation Fee; and

 Increases the Planning and Zoning Fees; and

 Establishes a Fire Inspection Fee; and

 Affirms and Readopts the Annual Fee Schedule;

as set forth in the following sections:



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 6 of 34

PART 1: ADOPTION OF FY 14 BUDGET

Section 1: Total FY 13-14 Total Budget Summary

Recommended Approved Requested Recommended Approved

10 General Operating 15,731,000$ 15,300,000$ 18,290,511$ 15,731,000$ 15,300,000$

11 Powell Bill Operating 445,100$ 445,100$ 445,100$ 445,100$ 445,100$

30 Water Enterprise 6,270,000$ 6,007,400$ 6,252,100$ 6,270,000$ 6,007,400$

31 Sewer Enterprise 4,952,000$ 4,894,400$ 4,920,000$ 4,952,000$ 4,894,400$

64 Regional Water Enterprise 4,735,000$ 4,430,000$ 4,867,900$ 4,735,000$ 4,430,000$

40 Library Trust -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

50 LEO Pension Trust -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

51 Elmwood Cemetery Trust -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

-$

70 Capital Reserve Utilities 173,400$ 173,400$ 173,400$ 173,400$ 173,400$

72 Capital Reserve General -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

73 Capital Reserve Economic Development 15,300$ 15,300$ 25,300$ 15,300$ 15,300$

78 Capital Reserve Regional 2,886,700$ 3,042,700$ 3,016,300$ 2,886,700$ 3,042,700$

79 Capital Reserve Rate Stabilization 3,625,700$ 3,625,700$ 3,625,700$ 3,625,700$ 3,625,700$

Subtotal 38,834,200$ 37,934,000$ 41,616,311$ 38,834,200$ 37,934,000$

FR 11 Powell Bill to 10 General 445,100$ 445,100$ TO: 10 from 11 445,100$ 445,100$

FR 30 Water to 10 General 361,300$ 361,300$ TO: 10 from 30 361,300$ 361,300$

FR 31 Sewer CA to 10 General 402,800$ 402,800$ TO: 10 from 31 402,800$ 402,800$

FR 51 Elmwood to 10 General -$ -$ TO: 10 from 51 -$ -$

FR 64 Regional CA to 10 General 225,000$ 225,000$ TO 10 from 64 CA 225,000$ 225,000$

FR 31 Sewer CA to 30 Water 202,500$ 144,900$ TO: 30 from 31 CA 202,500$ 144,900$

FR 64 Regional CA to 30 Water 80,000$ 80,000$ TO: 30 from 64 CA 80,000$ 80,000$

FR: 79 Rate Stabilization to 31 Sewer 200,000$ 200,000$ TO: 31 from 79 200,000$ 200,000$

FR: 78: CR Regional to 64 Water 110,000$ -$ TO: 64 from 78 110,000$ -$

FR: 31 Sewer to 70: CR Utilities 77,800$ 77,800$ TO: 70 from 31 77,800$ 77,800$

FR: 30 Water to 70 CR Utilities 44,600$ 44,600$ TO: 70 from 30 44,600$ 44,600$

FR: 10 General to 73 CR Econ Dev -$ -$ TO 73 from 10 -$ -$

FR 64 Regional to 78 Regional Reserve 669,000$ 825,000$ TO: 78 from 64 669,000$ 825,000$

FR 31: Sewer Fund to 79 CRRates 264,200$ 264,200$ TO: 79 from 31 264,200$ 264,200$

Total: Inter-Fund Transfers 3,082,300$ 3,070,700$ 3,082,300$ 3,070,700$

Revenue Summary Expenditures Summary

Operating Budgets' Total 38,834,200$ 37,934,000$ 38,834,200$ 37,934,000$

Less Inter-Fund Transfers' Total 3,082,300$ 3,070,700$ 3,082,300$ 3,070,700$

TOTAL FY 14 35,751,900$ 34,863,300$ TOTAL FY 14 35,751,900$ 34,863,300$

Last Updated: 13 June 13, rg

Less Inter-Fund Transfers--ExpendituresLess Inter-Fund Transfers--Revenues

Trust Funds

Capital Reserve Funds

Fund

Governmental Funds

Enterprise Funds

EXPENDITURES

FY 13-14 TOTAL COUNCIL APPROVED BUDGET SUMMARY

REVENUES

REVENUES EXPENDITURES



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 7 of 34

Section 2: 10: General Governmental Fund

10 GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Ad Valorem Taxes

10-100-400-000 Ad Valorem-All Prior Years 5,000$ 5,000$

10-100-400-309 Ad Valorem-2009 5,000$ 5,000$

10-100-400-310 Ad Valorem-2010 35,000$ 35,000$

10-100-400-311 Ad Valorem-2011 40,000$ 40,000$

10-100-400-312 Ad Valorem-2012 170,000$ 170,000$

10-100-400-313 Ad Valorem-2013 6,105,100$ 5,677,900$

10-100-400-401 Debt Set-Off Ad Valorem 1,000$ 1,000$

10-100-400-450 Tax Penalties & Interest 70,000$ 70,000$

Subtotal-Ad Valorem Taxes All Years 6,431,100$ 6,003,900$

Other Local Taxes & Licenses

10-100-400-500 ABC Net Revenues 1,000$ 1,000$

10-100-400-520 1% Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) 950,000$ 950,000$

10-100-400-521 Two 1/2% LOST 1,000,000$ 1,000,000$

10-100-400-530 1/4 % LOST Hold-Harmless 450,000$ 425,000$

10-100-400-535 Solid Waste Disposal Tax 6,000$ 6,400$

10-100-400-540 Business Privilege License (BPL) 242,000$ 203,000$

10-100-400-550 Motor Vehicle Licenses 105,000$ 105,000$

10-100-400-555 Vehicle Rental Tax 6,000$ 6,000$

Subtotal-Other Taxes & Licenses 2,760,000$ 2,696,400$

Inter-Governmental Unrestricted

10-100-400-570 Payment in Lieu of Tax: Vance Co PHA 1,500$ 1,500$

10-100-400-560 Vance County ABC Bottle Tax 5% 1,600$ 1,600$

10-100-411-010 State Beer and Wine Tax 70,000$ 70,000$

10-100-411-020 State Utility Franchise Tax 850,000$ 850,000$

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Unrestricted 923,100$ 923,100$

Inter-Governmental Restricted

10-100-455-072 Bulletproof Vest Grant-Police 2,500$ 2,500$

10-100-455-800 NCDOT Mowing Contract 4,000$ 4,000$

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Restricted 6,500$ 6,500$

Sales & Services

10-100-433-100 Garage Sales 797,700$ 779,700$

Subtotal-Garage Sales 797,700$ 779,700$

10-100-455-400 Refuse Collection 1,734,600$ 1,824,000$

10-100-455-402 Rubbish Pick-Up 4,000$ 4,000$

10-100-455-500 Bad Debt Recovery Sanitation 1,500$ 1,500$

10-100-455-501 Bad Debt Recovery-Debt Set-Off 1,500$ 1,500$

10-100-455-035 Sale of Leaf Bags 1,000$ 1,000$

10-100-455-200 Demolition & Lot Cleaning Fees Paid 500$ 500$

10-100-400-452 Demolition & Lot Liens Collected 3,000$ 3,000$

Subtotal-Sanitation Sales & Services 1,746,100$ 1,835,500$

10-100-433-200 Recreation Fees & Revenues 62,000$ 56,000$

10-100-433-201 Aycock-Aquatic Center Revenues 66,000$ 66,000$

10-100-433-300 Rental-Fox Pond Park 2,000$ 2,000$

10-100-477-020 Vance County-45% Operations 409,100$ 375,100$

10-100-477-040 Vance County Youth Services 209,800$ 209,800$

10-100-477-021 Vance County-45% Aycock Operations 281,700$ 127,000$

10-100-477-022 Vance County-50% Aycock Debt Service 153,700$ 153,700$

Subtotal-Recreation Program & Services 1,184,300$ 989,600$

10-100-455-300 Zoning & BOA Permits 12,000$ 17,000$

10-100-455-600 Cemetery Lot Sales & Services 6,000$ 6,000$

10-100-422-220 Rental-Police Training Center -$ -$

Subtotal-Miscellaneous Sales & Services 18,000$ 23,000$

Subtotal for All Sales and Services 3,746,100$ 3,627,800$

Subtotal All Categories for this Page 13,866,800$ 13,257,700$

Recreation Programs & Services

Miscellaneous Sales & Services

FY14

Revenues

Operating Revenues

Garage Internal Service

Sanitation Sales & Services



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 8 of 34

Section 2: 10: General Governmental Fund (continued)

10 GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

13,866,800$ 13,257,700$

Miscellaneous

10-100-422-110 Court Cost Fees 6,000$ 6,000$

10-100-422-210 Parking Violations 2,000$ 2,000$

10-100-422-211 Fire Insperction Fee -$ 25,100$

10-100-457-000 Sale of Assets & Material 7,000$ 7,000$

10-100-444-010 Investments 4,000$ 4,000$

10-100-455-010 Miscellaneous 5,000$ 5,000$

Subtotal-Miscellaneous 24,000$ 49,100$

Budgetary Appropriations

10-980-461-011 Transfer from: 11 Powell Bill Fund 445,100$ 445,100$

10-985-471-030 Transfer from 30: Water-Cost Allocation 361,300$ 361,300$

10-985-471-031 Transfer from 31: Sewer-Cost Allocation 402,800$ 402,800$

10-985-471-064 Transfer from 64: Regional-Cost Allocation 225,000$ 225,000$

Subtotal-Inter-Fund Transfers 1,434,200$ 1,434,200$

10-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriated -$ 153,000$

10-995-490-999Asset Forfeiture Fund Balance Appropriated 406,000$ 406,000$

Subtotal-Fund Balance Appropriations 406,000$ 559,000$

Subtotal-Budgetary Appropriations 1,840,200$ 1,993,200$

Total-This Page 15,731,000$ 15,300,000$

Subtotal-Ad Valorem Taxes All Years 6,431,100$ 6,003,900$

Subtotal-Other Taxes & Licenses 2,760,000$ 2,696,400$

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Unrestricted 923,100$ 923,100$

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Restricted 6,500$ 6,500$

Subtotal-Sales & Services 3,746,100$ 3,627,800$

Subtotal-Miscellaneous 24,000$ 49,100$

Subtotal-Budgetary Appropriations 1,840,200$ 1,993,200$

Total Revenues 15,731,000$ 15,300,000$

Inter-Fund Transfers

Fund Balance Appropriations

Total Fund Revenue Summary

FY14

Revenues (continued)

Total- All Categories From Prior Page



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 9 of 34

Section 2: 10: General Governmental Fund (continued)
10 GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Departmental Expenditures

10-410 Governing Body 182,800$ 178,800$
10-414 City Attorney 71,700$ 71,700$

Subtotal-Legislative 254,500$ 250,500$

10-420 Administration 341,700$ 341,700$
10-425 Human Resources 202,200$ 169,200$
10-440 Finance 467,000$ 403,000$
10-450 Information Services 45,800$ 37,800$

Subtotal-Administrative 1,056,700$ 951,700$

10-423 Code Compliance 165,700$ 165,700$
10-495 Planning & Community Development 145,800$ 145,800$
10-496 Main Street-Downtown Development 63,400$ 62,200$

Subtotal-Planning & Community Development 374,900$ 373,700$

10-510 Police 4,155,900$ 4,031,100$

10-512 Police-Asset Forfeiture 406,000$ 406,000$
10-530 Fire 2,263,800$ 2,160,800$

Subtotal-Public Safety 6,825,700$ 6,597,900$

10-500 Public Buildings 93,000$ 73,000$

10-501 Bennett Perry House 8,700$ 4,700$
10-545 Public Services Administration 141,100$ 141,100$

10-555 Garage 964,200$ 944,200$
10-560 Cemetery 77,200$ 77,200$
10-570 Street Maintenance 1,210,100$ 1,193,400$
10-580 Sanitation 891,500$ 891,500$

Subtotal-Public Services 3,385,800$ 3,325,100$

10-620 Recreation Services 909,200$ 891,500$

10-622 Youth Services 209,800$ 209,800$
10-623 Aycock/Aquatics Center 352,700$ 348,100$

Subtotal-Recreation & Parks 1,471,700$ 1,449,400$

-$ -$
10-650 City & County Shared Programs 958,700$ 958,700$

10-660 Non-Departmental 427,800$ 417,800$
10-680 Debt Service 940,100$ 940,100$

Subtotal-Non-Departmental 2,361,700$ 2,351,700$

Subtotal-All Departments 15,731,000$ 15,300,000$

Subtotal-Legislative 254,500$ 250,500$

Subtotal-Administrative 1,056,700$ 951,700$
Subtotal-Planning & Community Development 374,900$ 373,700$

Subtotal-Public Safety 6,825,700$ 6,597,900$

Subtotal-Public Services 3,385,800$ 3,325,100$
Subtotal-Recreation & Parks 1,471,700$ 1,449,400$
Subtotal-Non-Departmental 2,361,700$ 2,351,700$

Total Expenditures 15,731,000$ 15,300,000$

Total General Fund Revenues 15,731,000$ 15,300,000$
Total General Fund Expenditures 15,731,000$ 15,300,000$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

Non-Departmental

Total Fund Expenditure Summary

Legislative

Administrative

Planning & Community Development

Public Safety

Public Services

Recreation & Parks

FY14

Expenditures



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 10 of 34

Section 3: 11: Powell Bill Governmental Fund

11 POWELL BILL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

11-110-411-120 Powell Bill Allocation 445,000$ 445,000$

Subtotal 445,000$ 445,000$

Miscellaneous Revenues

11-110-444-010 Investments 100$ 100$

Subtotal 100$ 100$

Budgetary Appropriations

11-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriated -$ -$

Subtotal -$ -$

Total Revenues 445,100$ 445,100$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
11-690-561-010 Powell Bill 445,100$ 445,100$

Total Expenditures 445,100$ 445,100$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues

Inter-Governmental Restricted Revenues



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 11 of 34

Section 4: 30: Water Enterprise Fund

30 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

30-300-433-420 Account Set Up Fee 12,000$ 12,000$

30-300-433-430 Water Taps 35,000$ 35,000$

30-300-433-410 Water User Revenues 2,747,000$ 2,542,000$

30-300-433-416 Water Charges-Franklin County 2,829,500$ 2,829,500$

30-300-433-425 Water Charges-Kittrell WA 60,000$ 60,000$

30-300-433-426 Vance County 1A 30,000$ 30,000$

30-300-433-450 Sprinkler/Hydrant Fees 111,000$ 111,000$

30-300-433-440 Late Fee Charges 71,000$ 71,000$

30-300-433-460 Reconnect Service Fee 20,000$ 20,000$

30-300-433-407 Returned Check Fee 4,000$ 4,000$

30-300-455-010 Miscellaneous 2,000$ 2,000$

30-300-455-500 Bad Debt Recovery 5,000$ 5,000$

30-300-455-501 Bad Debt Rec-Debt Set Off 5,000$ 5,000$

Subtotal 5,931,500$ 5,726,500$

Non-Operating Revenues

30-300-444-010 Investments 3,000$ 3,000$

30-300-433-470 Sale of Materials 3,000$ 3,000$

30-300-457-000 Sale of Assets -$ -$

30-300-455-025 Sprint PCS Agreement 25,000$ 25,000$

30-300-455-030 T-Mobile Agreement 25,000$ 25,000$

Subtotal 56,000$ 56,000$

Budgetary Appropriations

30-985-471-031 Transfrom 31: Sewer Cost Alloc 202,500$ 144,900$

30-985-471-064 Trans from 64 Regional Cost Alloc 80,000$ 80,000$

Subtotal 282,500$ 224,900$

Total Revenues 6,270,000$ 6,007,400$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
30-660 Non-Departmental 599,500$ 582,200$

30-680 Debt Service 732,100$ 732,100$

30-715 Public Services Administration 115,300$ -$

30-720 Engineering 288,800$ 288,800$

30-725 Customer Service 498,400$ 498,400$
30-818 Water Distribution Operations 4,035,900$ 3,905,900$

Total Expenditures 6,270,000$ 6,007,400$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues

Operating Revenues



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 12 of 34

Section 5: 31: Sewer Enterprise Fund

31 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

31-310-433-420 Account Set Up Fee 25,000$ 25,000$

31-310-433-435 Sewer Taps 4,000$ 4,000$

31-310-433-485 Sewer User Revenues 4,294,000$ 4,236,400$

31-310-433-480 Sewer Surcharges 15,000$ 15,000$

31-310-433-440 Late Fee Charges 176,000$ 176,000$

31-310-433-460 Reconnect Service Fee 50,000$ 50,000$

31-310-433-495 FOG Monitoring Inspection Fee 7,500$ 7,500$

31-310-433-485 Sewer Code Violations 3,800$ 3,800$

31-310-455-010 Miscellaneous 100$ 100$

31-310-455-500 Bad Debt Recovery 10,000$ 10,000$

31-310-455-501 Bad Debt Rec-Debt Set Off 10,000$ 10,000$

Subtotal 4,595,400$ 4,537,800$

Non-Operating Revenues

31-310-444-010 Investments 1,000$ 1,000$

31-310-461-230 Vance Co DS NVHS Sewer 77,800$ 77,800$

31-310-477-052 Vance Co DS Ruin Ck Sewer 77,800$ 77,800$

Subtotal 156,600$ 156,600$

Budgetary Appropriations

31-980-461-079 Transfer from: 79 Rate Stabilization 200,000$ 200,000$

Subtotal 200,000$ 200,000$

Total Revenues 4,952,000$ 4,894,400$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
31-660 Non-Departmental 1,118,200$ 1,060,600$
31-680 Debt Service 875,000$ 875,000$

31-822 Water Reclamation Facility 2,266,700$ 2,266,700$

31-828 Sewer Collection Operations 395,900$ 395,900$

31-829 Sewer I & I Operations 296,200$ 296,200$

Total Expenditures 4,952,000$ 4,894,400$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues

Operating Revenues



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 13 of 34

Section 6: 64: Regional Water Enterprise Fund

Section 7: 40: Public Library Trust Fund

64 REGIONAL WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

64-640-433-415 Sale of Water 4,590,000$ 4,395,000$

Subtotal 4,590,000$ 4,395,000$

Non-Operating Revenues

64-640-444-010 Investment Income 3,000$ 3,000$

64-640-455-010 Miscellaneous 7,000$ 7,000$

Subtotal 10,000$ 10,000$

Budgetary Appropriations

64-640-461-078 Trans from 78: Capital Reserve 110,000$ -$

64-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriation 25,000$ 25,000$

Subtotal 135,000$ 25,000$

Total Revenues 4,735,000$ 4,430,000$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
64-660 Non-Departmental 1,103,900$ 1,239,900$

64-680 Debt Service 792,100$ 792,100$

64-900 Regional Water Plant 2,839,000$ 2,398,000$

Total Expenditures 4,735,000$ 4,430,000$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

Operating Revenues

Revenues

FY14

40 PUBLIC LIBRARY TRUST FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations

40-400-461-020 Transfer from 10: General Fund -$ -$

Subtotal -$ -$

Total Revenues -$ -$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
40-850 Library -$ -$

Total Expenditures -$ -$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 14 of 34

Section 8: 50: Law Enforcement Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund

Section 9: 51: Elmwood Cemetery Trust Fund

50 LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' RETIREMENT TRUST FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations

50-550-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation -$ -$

Subtotal -$ -$

Total Revenues -$ -$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
50-860 Non-Departmental -$ -$

Total Expenditures -$ -$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues

51 ELMWOOD CEMETERY TRUST FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations

51-480-444-010 Investments -$ -$

Subtotal -$ -$

Total Revenues -$ -$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
51-855 Cemetery -$ -$

Total Expenditures -$ -$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 15 of 34

Section 10: 70: Utilities Capital Reserve Fund

Section 11: 72: General Capital Reserve Fund

70 UTILITIES CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

70-851-444-010 Investments 45$ 45$

70-801-444-010 Investments -$ -$

Subtotal 45$ 45$

Budgetary Appropriations

70-801-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriated 11,000$ 11,000$

70-801-461-030 Trans from 30: Water Fund 44,600$ 44,600$

70-851-461-031 Trans from 31: Sewer Fund 77,800$ 77,800$

70-700-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriated 39,955$ 39,955$

Subtotal 173,355$ 173,355$

Total Revenues 173,400$ 173,400$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
70-801-509-850 Water Reserve 55,600$ 55,600$
70-851-509-850 Sewer Reserve 117,800$ 117,800$

Total Expenditures 173,400$ 173,400$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenues

72 GENERAL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

72-722-444-010 Investments -$ -$

Subtotal -$ -$

Total Revenues -$ -$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
72-875-509-800 Capital Reserve -$ -$

Total Expenditures -$ -$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenues



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 16 of 34

Section 12: 73: Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund

Section 13: 78: Regional Water Capital Reserve Fund

73 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

73-990-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriated 15,300$ 15,300$

73-980-461-010 Transfer from 10: General Fund -$ -$

Subtotal 15,300$ 15,300$

Total Revenues 15,300$ 15,300$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
73-660-509-850 Capital Reserve 15,300$ 15,300$

Total Expenditures 15,300$ 15,300$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues

Budgetary Appropriations

78 REGIONAL WATER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Corps of Engineers 78-911-461-064 Transfer from Regional Fund 64 9,000$ 9,000$

Corps of Engineers 78-911-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 45,395$ 45,395$

Corps of Engineers 78-911-444-010 Investment Income 5$ 5$

Subtotal 54,400$ 54,400$

20 MGD 78-922-461-064 Transfer from Regional Fund 64 610,000$ 766,000$

20 MGD 78-922-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 1,997,006$ 1,997,006$

20 MGD 78-922-444-010 Investment Income 494$ 494$

Subtotal 2,607,500$ 2,763,500$

Regional CR 78-865-461-064 Transfer from Regional Fund 64 50,000$ 50,000$

Regional CR 78-865-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 174,718$ 174,718$

Regional CR 78-865-444-010 Investment Income 82$ 82$

Subtotal 224,800$ 224,800$

Total Revenues 2,886,700$ 3,042,700$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures
78-911-509-850 Corp of Engineers Reserve 54,400$ 54,400$

78-922-509-850 20 MGD Reserve 2,607,500$ 2,763,500$
78-865-509-850 Regional Capital Reserve 224,800$ 224,800$

Total Expenditures 2,886,700$ 3,042,700$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues

Revenues by Project



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 17 of 34

Section 14: 79: Rate Stabilization Capital Reserve Fund

PART 2: ESTABLISHING THE FY 13-14 PROPERTY TAX RATE

Section 15: Ad Valorem Property Tax Rate Established

There is hereby levied an Ad Valorem property tax rate of $0.62 on each one hundred
dollars ($100) valuation of taxable property, both real and personal, as listed for taxes as of
1 January 2013 for the purpose of raising the revenue set forth in the 10: General Fund
budget estimates in order to finance its authorized appropriations necessary for the proper
running of the government and delivery of its services to citizens and customers. The 2013
Ad Valorem property tax revenue is based on an estimated overall valuation of
$981,000,000 at a collection rate of 93.5%.

PART 3: AUTHORIZING INCREASES IN FEES AND RATES

Section 16: Sanitation Fee Increased

The monthly Sanitation Fee shall increase from $27.00 to $29.00 for all bills rendered on
or after 1 July 2013, and shall be reflected in the Annual Fee Schedule, attached hereto and
incorporated into this Ordinance.

79 RATE STABILIZATION CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

City Manager City Council

Recommend Approved

Water Plant 79-641-433-418 Water Reservation Fee-Granville Co. 951,100$ 951,100$

Water Plant 79-641-433-412 Water Reservation Fee-Vance Ph 1A 9,125$ 9,125$

79-641-433-413 Water Reservation Fee-Vance Ph 2A&2B 43,750$ 43,750$

79-641-444-010 Investments 30,547$ 30,547$

79-641-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 2,052,278$ 2,052,278$

Subtotal 3,086,800$ 3,086,800$

HWRF 79-652-461-031 Transfer from 31: Sewer Fund 264,200$ 264,200$

HWRF 79-652-444-010 Investments 60$ 60$

79-652-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation 274,640$ 274,640$

Subtotal 538,900$ 538,900$

Total Revenues 3,625,700$ 3,625,700$

Expenditures

Departmental Expenditures

Water Plant 79-641-535-750 20 MGD Rate Stabilization 3,086,800$ 3,086,800$
HWRF 79-652-535-750 HWRF Rate Stabilization 538,900$ 538,900$

Total Expenditures 3,625,700$ 3,625,700$

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$ -$

FY14

Revenues

Revenues by Project



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 18 of 34

Section 17: Planning and Zoning Fees Increased

The various planning and zoning fees are hereby increased by varying amounts, said
increases being more fully described in the Annual Fee Schedule, attached hereto and
incorporated into this Ordinance.

Rezoning Application
 Zoning Map Amendment to Residential District: $350.00 plus $50 per acre or part

thereof
 Zoning Map Amendment – Other: $350.00 plus $100.00 per acre or part thereof
 Review by Technical Review Committee: $200.00

Special Use Permit: $350.00
Variances: $350.00

Zoning Permit
 Residential: $100.00
 Commercial: $100.00
 Name Change/Change of Ownership: $100.00
 Home Occupation Permit: $100.00
 Certificate of Zoning Compliance: $50.00

Section 18: Fire Inspection Fee Established

A new, mandatory fire inspection fee shall be established for State Mandated Fire
Inspections, said fee shall be reflected in the Annual Fee Schedule, attached hereto and
incorporated into this Ordinance.

State Mandated Fire Inspections
Initial Inspection Fee
Up to 50,000 sf: $55.00
50,001 to 500,000 sf: $105.00
Greater than 500,000 sf: $120.00
Re-Inspections Fees for State Mandated Fire Inspections
1st: $0.00
2nd: $55.00
3rd: $110.00
4th: $225.00



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 19 of 34

Section 19: Sewer Rate Increased

The Sewer Rate shall be increased by 1% on all customers for all bills rendered on or after
1 July 2013 as reflected in the following Table, and said rates shall be included in the
Annual Fee Schedule.

PART 4: SPECIAL AUTHORIZATIONS

Section 20: Special Authorizations

The City Manager shall be authorized to re-allocate departmental appropriations among
the various objects of expenditures within any budget department as he deems appropriate
and necessary. Additionally, he shall be authorized to re-allocate departmental
appropriations among other departments within the same fund via an intra-fund transfer as
he deems appropriate and necessary. Notation of such appropriations shall be made to the
City Council on the next financial report. All inter-fund transfers must also be approved in
advance by the Finance Director.

Section 21: Restrictions

 The inter-fund transfer of funds shall be made only with the prior consent of City
Council via a formal Budget Ordinance Amendment.

 Contingency funds shall only be appropriated with the prior consent of City
Council via a formal Budget Ordinance Amendment.

 Funds may only be appropriated from the Capital Reserve funds 70: Utilities
Capital Reserve Fund; 72: General Capital Reserve Fund; 73: Economic
Development Capital Reserve Fund; 78: Regional Water Capital Reserve Fund; and
79: Rate Stabilization Capital Reserve Fund; with the prior consent of the City
Council via a formal Budget Ordinance Amendment.

Minimum 0 - 10,000 CF Over 10,001 CF

Charge per 100 CF per 100 CF

In City 13.34$ plus 4.75$ 3.40$

Out of City 33.34$ plus 11.88$ 8.54$

Note: CF = cubic feet of water consumed or sewer metered through a sewer measuring device

Sewer Rates FY 13-14

Plus



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 20 of 34

Section 22: Capital Project and Grant Project Funds

 The City Manager may recommend to the City Council the establishment of any new
capital project and or grant project, or recommend amendments to existing capital project
and/or grant project via a formal Budget Ordinance Amendment.

 Capital projects and grant projects are considered to be open for the life of the project and
shall be reported to City Council in the same manner in which regular financial reports are
provided.

 Once a capital and/or grant project is authorized by City Council, the City Manager may
treat said project as though it were any other operating fund provided if such actions are
consistent with project and/or grant restrictions and guidelines.

Section 23: Utilization of Budget and Budget Ordinance

The FY 13-14 Budget Ordinance and the Budget it adopts shall be the basis of the financial plan

for the City of Henderson for the period beginning 1 July 2013 and ending 30 June 2014. The City

Manager shall administer guidance and direction to the Department Directors and/or other duly

authorized staff to implement their appropriate portion of the Budget. Copies of the Budget

Ordinance and its appropriate detail shall be provided to the Finance Director and all Department

Directors. The Finance Director shall establish records consistent with the Budget and its

authorizing Ordinance and in compliance with the North Carolina General Statutes and rules and

regulations as may exist or be promulgated in the future by the North Carolina Local Government

Commission.

PART 5: FEE SCHEDULE AFFIRMED AND READOPTED

Section 24: Fee Schedule Affirmed and Readopted

The Annual Fee Schedule incorporates the rates and fees associated with the various changes for
services and penalties for violations of City Codes. The Annual Fee Schedule is more fully
articulated in Attachment 1 to this Ordinance and is hereby reaffirmed and adopted as part of this
Ordinance.

PART 6: APPROVAL OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLANS

Section 25: Utilities Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan

The Utilities Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for the period 2012 – 2021, and initially
approved on 13 June 2011 via Resolution 11-59 is hereby reaffirmed and readopted as the City of
Henderson’s multi-year capital improvements plan for its Regional Water, Water and Sewer
systems. Said CIP is on permanent file in the Office of the City Clerk and is incorporated herein
as part of this Ordinance by reference.



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 21 of 34

Section 26: General Fund Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan

The General Fund Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan (Plan) for the period 2014-2018 is
hereby adopted as the City of Henderson’s multi-year general improvements plan. Said Plan is on
permanent file in the Office of City Clerk and is incorporated herein as part of this Ordinance by
reference.

PART 7: FY14 AMENDMENT #1

Section 27: Amending the FY14 Budget to Reflect the Appropriation from 64: Regional
Water Enterprise Fund to 46: CIP Regional Water Fund for 46-937: Inter-Basin
Transfer of Water Project.

PART 8: ADOPTION OF BUDGET AND RELATED
AUTHORIZING INSTRUMENTS

Section 28: Effective Date

This Ordinance shall become effective on 1 July 2013.

FUND:

PROJECT:
Initial Current

Budget Budget Amendment Revised

46-937-461-064 119,988$ 307,988$ 38,000$ 345,988$

46-937-461-065 -$ 525,000$ -$ 525,000$

46-937-444-010 -$ 12$ -$ 12$

Total 119,988$ 833,000$ 38,000$ 871,000$

871,000$

Initial Current

Budget Budget Amendment Revised

937-500-400 -$ 41,224$ 38,000$ 79,224$

937-509-900 -$ 188,012$ -$ 188,012$

937-510-100 119,988$ 119,988$ -$ 119,988$

937-510-301 -$ 483,776$ -$ 483,776$

-$

Total 119,988$ 833,000$ 38,000$ 871,000$

871,000$

Variance -$

From 64: Regional Water Fund

IBT Professional Services

IBT Contingency

IBT Planning/Design

This amendment has the effect of transferring the $38,000 in funding established as part of 64-660-561-046 as authorized in the FY14 Budget

Adoption Ordinance 13-19, Part 1, Section 6.

Reference:

Initial Ordinance was established 10 April 2006 (ordinance unnumbered); See also Ordinance 12-29 dated 9 April 2012.

937: Inter-Basin Transfer Permit

937: Inter-Basin Transfer Permit

From 64: Regional Water Fund

Investments

IBT Engineering

Ordinance 13-19
46: CIP Regional FY 13-14 Budget Amendment # 1

937: Inter-Basin Transfer Permit



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 22 of 34

Section 29: Adoption

The foregoing Ordinance 13-19, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and
was **** on this the 24th day of June 2013: YES: . NO: . ABSTAIN: . ABSENT: .

___________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk

Reference: Minute Book 42, p.**;

__________

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON

I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do hereby
certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-19 adopted by the Henderson, City
Council in Regular Session on 24 June 2013. This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 9,
p.***.

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****.

_________________________
Esther McCrackin
City Clerk
City of Henderson, North Carolina

Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________
Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director

Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 23 of 34

Annual Fee Schedule
FY 13-14

Cemetery1

Grave Plot $750.00

Engineering
Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Permit

Plan Review Fee (.50 - .999 Acres) $75.00
Plan Review Fee (1- 3 acres) $100.00
Plan Review Fee (more than 3 Acres plus $20.00 per Acre) $125.00

Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Permit
Permit Inspection Fee (.50 - .999 Acres) $125.00
Permit Inspection Fee (1 – 3 Acres) $225.00
Permit Inspection Fee (more than 3 Acres plus $25.00 per Acre) $325.00

Stormwater Permit Review Fee $400.00
Maps $1.00 to $20.00
Petition to Close Street $900.00

Finance
Late Fee (One Time Waiver within a rolling 12 month period with Good Standing History) $12.00
Privilege Licenses (See Privilege Licenses)
Reconnection Fee $13.00
Returned Check Fees $25.00
Security Deposits (see below)

1
City stopped opening/closing graves in 2011

Water and Sewer Security Deposits’ Schedule
Approved Ordinance 13-10 March 11, 2013

Residential In-City Current R-Tier 1 Deposit R-Tier 2 Deposit

Water, Sewer & Sanitation $150.00 2.5 times average monthly bill

Water & Sewer Only (for those
living in apartment complexes
providing commercial green
boxes)

$150.00 2.5 times average monthly bill

Water or Sewer & Sanitation $150.00 2.5 times average monthly bill

Residential Out-of-City

Water & Sewer $200.00 2.5 times average monthly bill

Water Only $200.00 2.5 times average monthly bill

Sewer Only $200.00 2.5 times average monthly bill

R-Tier 1 Deposit is the deposit required by any new residential customer establishing an account and not able to
provide a satisfactory letter of good payment history from his/her most recent water/sewer utility provider.
Additionally, any existing residential customer as of the effective date of this Ordinance (1 April 2013) whose
service is subject to disconnection because of non-payment will be required to increase his/her security deposit to the
R-Tier 1 Deposit rate in order to re-establish service.

R-Tier 2 Deposit is the deposit required of any existing residential customer whose service has been subject to
disconnection for non-payment twice within a rolling 18-month period. Such customers will have to increase their
security deposit on-file to 2.5 times their average monthly bill in order to have service restored. Additionally, if any
person seeking to establish service with the City is found to have an arrears balance from prior service with the City,
he/she shall be required to establish a security deposit equal to 2.5 times an average residential monthly bill, even if
he/she can provide a letter of good payment history from his/her most recent water/sewer utility provider.

Attachment A



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 24 of 34

Fire
Fire Reports $1.00
Fire Code Violation Citations

Approved Fire Evacuation Plan Required and Posted $50.00
Street Address not Posted $50.00
Street Address not Visible $50.00
Key Boxes $50.00
Breach in Fire Wall/Fire Stops $50.00
Fire/Exit Door Inoperative $200.00
Fire Alarm Needs Testing $50.00
Sprinkler or Fire Alarm Inoperable $200.00
Sprinkler/Standpipe not Complying with Code $50.00
Sprinkler Heads Blocked/Covered (immediate) $500.00
Standpipe System not Complying with Code $50.00
Portable Fire Extinguisher $50.00
Fire Alarm and Detection Systems $50.00
Overcrowding (immediate) $500.00
Maximum Occupancy Load Certificate not Posted $50.00
Storage in or on Fire Escape (immediate) $500.00
Blocked Stairwells or Stairways $500.00
Blocked Means or Egress $500.00
No Required Exit Directional Signs $50.00
Exit Illuminated and Markings $50.00
Locked Exit Door (immediate) $500.00
Exit or Egress Door Needs Repair $50.00
Fire Exit or Aisle Blocked $500.00
Spray Booth Not Complying to Code $50.00
All Other Code Violations $50.00

State Mandated Fire Inspections
Initial Inspection

Up to 50,000 sf $55.00
50,001 to 500,000 sf $105.00
Greater than 500,000 sf $120.00

Re-Inspections
1st Re-inspection $0.00
2nd Re-inspection $55.00
3rd Re-inspection $110.00
4th Re-inspection $225.00

Commercial/Non-Profit & Industrial In-City
Based on Total Consumption Current CNI-Tier Deposit

Water, Sewer & Sanitation (for downtown
businesses not able to use commercial green

box services)
2.5 times average monthly bill

Water & Sewer Only 2.5 times average monthly bill

Commercial/Non-Profit & Industrial Out-of-City
Based on Total Consumption

Water & Sewer 2.5 times average monthly bill
Water Only 2.5 times average monthly bill

CNI-Tier Deposit is the deposit required by any new commercial, non-profit or industrial customer applying for
service with the City and cannot provide a satisfactory letter of good payment from his/her most recent water/sewer
utility provider. Existing customers whose service is subject to disconnection due to non-payment will be required
to increase his/her security deposits to 2.5 times their average monthly bill in order to re-establish service.”



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 25 of 34

Planning
Rezoning Application

Zoning Map Amendment to Residential District $350.00 plus $50 per acre or part thereof
Zoning Map Amendment – Other $350.00 plus $100.00 per acre or part thereof

Review by Technical Review Committee $200.00
Sign Permit

0-50 sq. ft $25.00
51 – 100 sq. ft $50.00
101 – 200 sq. ft $75.00
201 sq ft. and larger $100.00

Subdivision Plat Approval
Major $250.00 plus $10.00 per lot
Minor $150.00
Minor Residential $100.00
Exempt $50.00

Special Use Permit $350.00
Text Amendment

Change affecting only one subsection of Ordinance $100.00
Other $150.00

Variances $350.00
Zoning Permit

Residential $100.00
Commercial $100.00
Name Change/Change of Ownership $100.00
Home Occupation Permit $100.00
Certificate of Zoning Compliance $50.00

Zoning Ordinance $25.00
Subdivision Regulations $25.00
Exempt Plat $60.00

Police
Handicapped/Fire Lane Parking $75.00
Fire Hydrant, Loading Zone, Blocking Driveway, No

Parking Zone, Parking on Wrong Side of Street, Parking on
Sidewalk, Blocking Sidewalk/Crosswalk, Double Parking $20.00

Overtime Parking, Parking too Close to Corner, Other $8.00

Privilege Fees

Code/Category Fee

1 Advertisement $35.00
2 Amusements (Entertainments, Dances, Traveling, Banquet Room Rental) $25.00
3 Adult Entertainment Sales (Annual Fee) $800.00
4 Antique Furniture $50.00
5 Auto Service Station $12.50
6 Automobile Dealer (New & Used) $25.00
7 Bakery Products $50.00
8 Balloons, Novelties, Souvenirs $10.00
9 Barber Shops (Per Chair) $2.50
10 Beauty Shops (Per Chair) $2.50
11 Beer Off Premises $5.00
12 Beer On Premises $15.00
13 Bicycle Dealer $25.00



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 26 of 34

Privilege Fees

Code/Category Fee
14 Billiard Tables $25.00
15 Book Store $20.00
16 Bowling Alleys (Per Lane) $10.00
17 Brick Dealers and Manufacturers $20.00
18 Brokers & Commission Merchants $50.00
19 Building Materials $50.00
20 Cabinet & Carpenter Shops (1 Emp) $20.00
21 Cabinet & Carpenter Shops (2 Or More Emp) $50.00
22 Car Wash $12.50
23 Carnival Companies 300.00
24 Chain Stores $50.00
25 Check Cashing Business $100.00
26 Cigarette, Cigar, Tobacco $4.00
27 Circus & Animal Shows (Per Day) $25.00
28 Clothing Stores $50.00
29 Cold Storage & Freezer Locker $100.00
20 Collection and Claim Agencies $50.00
31 Confectionery & Fruit Stands $30.00
32 Contractor – Electrical $50.00
33 Contractor – General $10.00
34 Contractor – Heating / Air $50.00
35 Contractor – Plumbing $50.00
36 Contractor – Sprinkler System $100.00
37 Contractor – Wallpaper Hanging $20.00
38 Contractor - Roofing $50.00
39 Contractor – Painting $10.00
40 Cotton Warehouse $100.00
41 Creameries or Dairies $50.00
42 Day Cares $50.00
43 Dealer of Firearms $50.00
44 Dealer of Other Weapons $200.00
45 Drugstores $3.00
46 Dry Cleaners $50.00
47 Electric Company $100.00
48 Electronic Gaming Operations – (Per Terminal) $1,000.00
49 Electronic Gaming Operations – Annual Fee $2,000.00
50 Employment Agencies $100.00
51 Express Companies $100.00
52 Feed or Grain Stores $50.00
53 Fertilizer Dealers $50.00
54 Gas Company $100.00
55 Gas, Benzene, Lube, Oil & Grease $100.00
56 Grocery Stores $30.00
57 Hardware Stores $50.00
58 Harvesting & Agricultural Machine $50.00
59 Health Facilities, Spas, Gyms, etc. $50.00
60 Hotels Per Room ($25.00 Minimum) $1.00
61 Ice Cream Mfg, & Dealer – Retail $2.50
62 Ice Cream Mfg. & Dealer – Wholesale $25.00
63 Ice Dealers $50.00
64 Itinerant Merchants & Salesman $100.00
65 Jewelry Repair $20.00



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 27 of 34

Privilege Fees (Con’t)

Code/Category Fee
66 Jewelry Stores $50.00
67 Juke Box (Each) $5.00
68 Junk Dealers $75.00
69 Knitting Mills $50.00
70 Laundries/Launderettes $30.00
71 Lawn Care & Mowing $50.00
72 Loan Agencies $100.00
73 Locksmiths $50.00
74 Lunch Stands $5.00
75 Manufacturers $10.00
76 Meat Retailers $50.00
77 Meat Wholesale $100.00
78 Merry-Go-Round, Etc. (Arcade Games) $50.00
79 Metal & Machine Shop $50.00
80 Mills, Corn, Flour or Feed $60.00
81 Miscellaneous $50.00
82 Monument Erecting & Sales $80.00
83 Motorcycle/ATV/Scooter Dealer $12.50
84 Movie Theaters $200.00
85 Musical Instrument Sales $10.00
86 Nail Salon (per chair) $2.50
87 Newspaper Sales $50.00
88 Office Supplies & Servicing $50.00
89 Operators of Vending Machines $20.00
90 Outdoor Theaters $100.00
91 Pawnbroker $100.00
92 Peddler (Cart or Vehicle) $25.00
93 Peddler (on foot) $10.00
94 Photo Engravers $20.00
95 Piano Repairers & Tuners $5.00
96 Printing Establishments $20.00
97 Rags, Hides, Wastepaper Dealers $20.00
98 Repair Shop $20.00
99 Restaurants (0-4 Seats) $25.00
100 Restaurants (5 or More Seats) $42.50
101 Retail Merchants $50.00
102 Secondhand Dealers $40.00
103 Security Dealers $100.00
104 Service Merchant $50.00
105 Shoe Shop $20.00
106 Sporting Goods $50.00
107 Storage Warehouse/ Mini Storage $100.00
108 Sundries $4.00
109 Tailors $30.00
110 Tanning Salon (Per Unit) $5.00
111 Tattoo or Body Piercing (Per Emp) $100.00
112 Taxicab (Per Vehicle) $30.00
113 Telegraph Companies $50.00
114 Tobacco Leaf Dealers $50.00
115 Tobacco Warehouses $50.00
116 Undertakers & Coffin Retailers $50.00
117 Upholstery Shops $20.00



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 28 of 34

Privilege Fees (Con’t)

Code/Category Fee
118 Video Games (Each) $5.00
119 Video Rental $25.00
120 Wholesale Auto, Equipment/Supplies $37.50
121 Wholesale Dealers $100.00
122 Wine On Premises $15.00
123 Wine Off Premises $10.00
124 Wood & Coal Dealer – Retail $50.00
125 Wood & Coal Dealer – Wholesale $150.00
126 Wood Dealers $20.00
127 Wrestling & Boxing $100.00
128 Fish & Oyster Dealer – Retail $50.00
129 Florist $30.00

Regional Water
Bacteria Analysis (Contractors) $50.00
Bacteria Analysis (Partners) $35.00
Potable Water (Used Rate) $1,931.00
Potable Water (Fixed Rate) $1,235.00

Sanitation
Sanitation Charge – Monthly

1 Pickup per week per dwelling (includes one 96 gallon roll-out) $29.00
Additional 96 gallon roll-out container $3.87

2 Pickups per week per business $52.00
3 Pickups per week per business $78.00
4 Pickups per week per business $104.00
5 Pickups per week per business $130.00

Roll-out Container Replacement Fee $75.00
Large Trash Collection Fee $75.00 per hr (min. $75.00)
Appliance Collection Fee $15.00 per item
Commercial Recycle Monthly (ABC License only)

Weekly pickup $30.00
Construction Materials $350.00 per hr (min. $350.00)
Landfill Fee (Business Customers only) $5.50

Sewer Collection
Sewer Rates2

10,000 cubic ft or less (inside city) $13.34 minimum plus $4.75 per 100 cu. ft.
Over 10,000 cubic ft (inside city) $13.34 minimum plus $3.40 per 100 cu. ft.
10,000 cubic ft or less (outside city) $33.34 minimum plus $11.88 per 100 cu. ft.
Over 10,000 cubic ft (outside city) $33.34 minimum plus $8.54 per cu. ft.

Sewer Taps
4” Sewer Tap $1,000
6” Sewer Tap (within manhole) $1,200
Above 6” Sewer Tap Actual cost of labor, equipment &

material plus 10%
Capacity Usage Fee $0.75/gallon

(gallons determined by type of establishment)
Rentals

Jet Vac Machine $300.00 per hour

2
CF = Cubic Feet of water consumed or sewer metered through a sewer measuring device.



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 29 of 34

Sewer Collection I&I
Rentals

TV Camera Truck $200.00 per hour

Street
Street Cuts

Asphalt Street (20’0” wide) $150.00
Concrete Base Street (more than 4”) $350.00
Concrete Base Street (less than 4”) $320.00
Unpaved Street $100.00

Sidewalk Cuts
Concrete Sidewalk (except Garnett St. from Spring St. to Church St.) $100.00
Garnett Street (from Church St. to Spring St.) $150.00
Curb and Gutter Cut (3 ft. minimum charge) $15.00/ft

Encroachment Fee $20.00

Water Distribution
Water Rates

0 – 499 cubic ft. (minimum fee – inside city) $10.07
0 – 499 cubic ft. (minimum fee - outside city) $25.18
500 – 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - inside city) $2.28 per 100 cubic ft.
500 – 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - outside city) $5.70 per 100 cubic ft.
Consumption exceeding 1st 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - inside city) $1.72 per 100 cubic ft.
Consumption exceeding 1st 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - outside city) $4.30 per 100 cubic ft.

Large Quantity Water Rates
First 100,000 cubic ft. (inside city) $1.29 per 100 cubic ft.
First 100,000 cubic ft. (outside city) $3.19 per 100 cubic ft.
Consumption exceeding 100,000 cubic ft. (inside city) $1.03 per 100 cubic ft.
Consumption exceeding 100,000 cubic ft. (outside city) $2.57 per 100 cubic ft.

Water Taps
¾” Water Tap $1,235.00
1” Water Tap $1,340.00
1” Water Tap w/ two ¾” Branch Meters $1,590.00
Above 1” Taps Actual cost of labor, equipment & materials plus 10%

Bulk Water
Inside Rate $7.96 service connection (includes first 500 gallons)

.006/gallons for any amount over 500
Outside Rate $13.79 service connection (includes first 500 gallons)

.009/gallon for any amount over 500
Capacity Usage Fee $0.50/gallon (gallons are determined by

type of establishment)
Set Meter Fee

¾” Taps already in place $300.00
1” Taps already in place $400.00

Fire Protection Sprinkler Fee based on sq. footage
Fire Hydrant Meter Deposit Fee (95% refundable if returned in good condition) $1,000.00



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 30 of 34

Fire Hydrant – Category A
Inside Rate - charge for floor space w/only a private fire line & fire hydrants(s) - no inside sprinkler

Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (A1) $2.93
300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (A1 + A2) $1.61
1,000,000 sq. feet and above (A1 + A2 + A3) $0.70

Outside Rate - charge for floor space w/only a private fire line & fire hydrants(s) - no inside sprinkler
Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (B1) $5.98
300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (B1 +B2) $3.24
1,000,000 sq. feet and above (B1 + B2 + B3) $2.27

Fire Hydrant – Category B
Inside Rate - charge for floor space protected w/ fire line, fire hydrant(s) and inside sprinkler

Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (A1) $5.36
300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (A1 + A2) $2.23
1,000,000 sq. feet and above (A1 + A2 + A3) $1.16

Outside Rate - charge for floor space protected w/ fire line, fire hydrant(s) and inside sprinkler
Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (B1) $10.95
300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (B1 + B2) $4.45
1,000,000 sq. feet and above (B1 + B2 + B3) $2.23

Fire Hydrant – Category C
Inside Rate - charge for floor space w/ fire hydrant(s) and inside sprinkler

Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (A1) $8.29
300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (A1 + A2) $3.84
1,000,000 sq. feet and above (A1 + A2 + A3) $1.81

Outside Rate - charge for floor space w/ fire hydrant(s) and inside sprinkler
Per 10,000 sq. feet - Minimum (B1) $16.93
300,000 – 1,000,000 sq. feet (B1 + B2) $7.71
1,000,000 sq. feet and above (B1 + B2 + B3) $4.49

Fire Hydrant – Subdivision outside of City limits (to be charged per lot when service is made) $1.76

Water Distribution/Sewer Collection
Utility Reconnection Fee $13.00
Account Set-up Fee $20.00
Late Payment Penalty $12.00
Meter Tampering Fee $200.00
Rental Fees (Add Personnel/Supervision/Materials fees below to rental fee)

Pickup Trucks (3/4 and 1 Ton) $25.00 per hour
Backhoe $60.00 per hour
Dump Truck $40.00 per hour
Tamp. Concrete Saw $20.00 per hour
Air Compressor $20.00 per hour
Personnel Employee wage plus 10%
Supervision Charge $100.00 per hour
Materials Material Cost plus 10%

Water Reclamation
Sewer Surcharges

Biochemical Oxygen Demand $0.1941 lb.
Chemical Oxygen Demand $0.0968 lb.
Total Suspended Solids $0.0989 lb.
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen $1.4845 lb.
Total Phosphorus $2.8697 lb.

Sampling Fee $9.06 to $62.63
Priority Pollutant Scan – Sampling Fees $1,661.04
Mercury Clean Sampling Fee $377.52
Compliance Inspection – Pretreatment $754.98



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 31 of 34

Toxicity: Mini Chronic/Full Range $490.73 - $1,094.79
Permit Fee for Discharge (based on gallons per day) $305.95 – $758.49
Permit Fee for Discharge of Groundwater Remediation Project $605.52
FOG Compliance Inspection and Monitoring $7.64 per mo.
FOG Permit Fee $153.00

Recreation

Registration Fees – Youth
Youth Athletics Registration Fee (County Resident)

Football, Volleyball, Soccer & Basketball $25.00
Youth Athletics Registration Fee (Non-Resident)

Football, Volleyball, Soccer & Basketball $45.00
Babe Ruth Baseball & Softball $30.00
All Star $20.00

Youth Sponsorship Fees
T-Ball League Baseball $550.00
Rookie League Baseball $750.00
Cal Ripken League Minor Baseball $350.00
Cal Ripken League Major Baseball $375.00
Babe Ruth League Baseball $400.00
Babe Ruth League 8-Under Softball $750.00
Babe Ruth League 10-Under Softball $350.00
Babe Ruth League 12-Under Softball $350.00
Babe Ruth League 16-Under Softball $350.00
Youth Basketball, Soccer & Volleyball $250.00

Recreation Insurance $10.00

Registration Fees - Adult
Team Registration Fee (Non-County Resident – add $10.00 per person to fees below)

Industrial League Basketball, Softball $420.00
Open League Basketball $420.00
Women’s Open Softball $300.00
Men’s Open Softball $420.00

Rentals (See Rentals – For- Profit or Rentals – Non-Profit also)
Batting Cage per hour (County) $10.00
Batting Cage per hour (Non-County) $15.00
Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (County) $10.00
Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (County) $20.00
All other Ballfields per field per hour (County) $10.00
All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (County) $15.00
Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (Non-County) $20.00
Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $40.00
All other Ballfields per field per hour (Non-County) $20.00
All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $30.00
Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (County) $200.00
Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (Non-County) $350.00



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 32 of 34

Rentals – Non-Profit
Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (County) $10.00
Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (County) $20.00
Aycock Ballfield one day / all four fields (County) $200.00
All other Ballfields per field per hour (County) $10.00
All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (County) $15.00
Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (County) $500.00
Lights per field per hour (County) $20.00
Old Aycock Gym per hour (County) $30.00
Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (Non-County) $20.00
Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $40.00
Aycock Ballfield one day / all four fields (Non-County) $350.00
All other Ballfields per field per hour (Non-County) $20.00

Rentals – Non-Profit (Con’t)
All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $30.00
Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (Non-County) $750.00
Lights per field per hour (Non-County) $30.00
Old Aycock Gym per hour (Non-County) $45.00

Rentals – For Profit
Aycock Ballfield – per field per hour (County) $20.00
All other Ballfields per hour (County) $15.00
Aycock Ballfield – per field – lighted per hour (County) $30.00
All other Ballfields – lighted per hour (County) $20.00
Aycock one day / all four fields (County) $300.00
Old Aycock Gym per hour - 2 hour minimum (County) $50.00
Aycock one day / all four fields (Non-County) $500.00
Aycock Weekend / all four fields (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (County). $650.00
Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (Non-County) $30.00
All other Ballfields per hour (Non-County) $25.00
Aycock Ballfield – per field – lighted per hour (Non-County) $40.00
All other Ballfields – lighted per hour (Non-County) $30.00
Aycock Weekend / all four fields (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (Non- County) $800.00
Old Aycock Gym per hour – 2 hour minimum (Non-County) $75.00
Lights per field per hour $25.00

Additional Services
Drag/Mark fields between each game per field (County) $20.00
Drag/Mark fields after 2 games per field (County) $15.00
Drag/Mark fields halfway through each day per field (County) $10.00
Supply ice water in coolers w/cups per dugout per game (County) $10.00
Drag/Mark fields between each game per field (Non-County) $30.00
Drag/Mark fields after 2 games per field (Non-County) $25.00
Drag/Mark fields halfway through each day per field (Non-County) $20.00
Supply ice water in coolers w/cups per dugout per game (Non-County) $15.00

Henderson Rec Players Tickets $7.00

Special Events (Athletic)
District Tournament Daily Pass for Students $2.00
District Tournament Daily Pass for Adults $4.00
District Tournament Pass for entire Tournament $10.00
State Tournament Daily Pass for Students $2.00
State Tournament Daily Pass for Adults $5.00



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 33 of 34

State Tournament Pass for Entire Tournament $15.00
Athletic Event Daily Pass $3.00
Athletic Event Tournament Pass $6.00

Special Events (Non-Athletic) not to exceed $8.00

Aycock Center

Rental
Aquatics –

Pool Non-Profit - County (per hour) $70.00
Pool Non-Profit – Non-County (per hour) $75.00
Pool For-Profit – County (per hour) $125.00
Pool For Profit – Non-County (per hour) $175.00
Swim Teams & Clubs – Private County (per lane, per hour) $6.00
Swim Teams & Clubs – Private Non-County (per lane, per hour) $12.00
Swim Teams & Clubs – County (per lane/per hour) $0.00
Swim Teams & Clubs – Non-County (per lane, per hour) $9.00
Swim Lessons $5.00
Water Aerobics (per class – 5 per week) $2.00

Gymnasium
Aycock Recreation Complex Non-Profit per hour – County $70.00
Aycock Recreation Complex Non-Profit per hour – Non-County $85.00
Aycock Recreation Complex - Non-Profit Private Team - County (per practice/game) $22.00
Aycock Recreation Complex - Non-Profit Private Team – Non-County (per practice/game) N/A

Aycock Recreation Complex For- Profit per hour – County $100.00
Aycock Recreation Complex For-Profit per hour – Non-County $150.00
Multi-purpose Room Non-Profit per hour – County $70.00
Multi-purpose Room Non-Profit per hour – Non-County $75.00
Multi-purpose Room For-Profit per hour – County $125.00
Multi-purpose Room For-Profit per hour – Non-County $175.00

Fees
Aycock Recreation Center

Resident – Daily
Adult Single Admission $5.00
Teen 18 and under $2.00
Senior 55 and over $2.00

Resident – Monthly
Adult Single Admission $30.00
18 and under $25.00
Senior 55 and over $25.00

Non-Resident – Daily
Adult Single Admission $10.00
18 and under $5.00
Senior 55 and over $5.00

Non-Resident – Monthly
Adult Single Admission $50.00
18 and Under $45.00
Senior 55 and Over $45.00

Resident Family Pass – Monthly
Family Pass $35.00



CAF 13-B-40: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 34 of 34

Seniors 55 and Over $25.00
Non-Resident Family Pass – Monthly

Family $65.00
Seniors 55 and Over $50.00

City/County/State Employee – Monthly
Family Pass $17.00
Adult $15.00
Senior 55 and Over $12.00

Classes/Programs

Preschool per class $3.00
Walking Program per month (Adult/Senior) $15.00
Swim Group $2.00

Camps
Summer Day Camp – per week (8-11 year olds) $30.00
Swim Camp $10.00



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 1 of 19

________________________________________
14 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council

FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager

RE: CAF: 13-74
Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-51, Authorizing the Mayor to
Execute an Agreement with ECS Carolinas, LLP to Perform Construction
Materials Testing Services Relative to Planning and Design for Improvements at the
Henderson Water Reclamation Facility, and 2) Ordinance 13-37, FY 2012-2013
Budget Amendment #40, An Amendment to the CIP Sewer Fund for Post-Bid
Estimates.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:

 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure
Systems.

 KSO 8: Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to
Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities.

Recommendation:

Consideration of Approval of:
 1) Resolution 13-51, Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Agreement with ECS Carolinas,

LLP to Perform Construction Materials Testing Services Relative to Planning and Design for
Improvements at the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility; and

 2) Ordinance 13-37, FY 2012-2013 Budget Amendment #40, An Amendment to the CIP
Sewer Fund for Post-Bid Estimate.

Executive Summary

ECS Carolinas, LLP performed the subsurface exploration and geotechnical engineering work,
which was used by McGill Associates to complete the design of the improvements to the
Henderson Water Reclamation Facility. Due to their knowledge of the site and familiarity with
the work performed thus far, it is recommended that they perform the Construction Materials

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _____________

Council Meeting: 24 June Short Reg. Meeting



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 2 of 19

Testing Services. McGill Associates has reviewed the proposal along with the city staff and
recommends approval of the contract. The estimated cost to perform this work is $115,810.
Based on past projects administered by McGill Associates, it is felt that final cost will come in
under that amount.

The existing budget for this work, including the previously performed subsurface and
geotechnical work, is $100,000. Should the total estimated amount be used, the remaining funds
would have to be moved from the contingency line item of which there is $672,950.

1. Resolution 13-51
2. Ordinance 13-37



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 3 of 19

R E S O L U T I O N 13-51

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH ECS CAROLINAS, LLP TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS TESTING SERVICES RELATIVE TO PLANNING AND DESIGN

FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT THE HENDERSON WATER RECLAMATION
FACILITY

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives
(KSO) at its 2013 Strategic Planning Retreat; and

WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows:
KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay
Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory
Authorities; and KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant
Infrastructure Systems; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina Water
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction or replacement of
wastewater collection systems; and

WHEREAS, the Council authorized submission of an application on 14 February 2011 via
Resolution 11-12, requesting State loan and/or grant assistance from the State Revolving
Fund Grant/Loan; and

WHEREAS, ECS completed the subsurface exploration and geotechnical work required to
complete the design process; and

WHEREAS, the subservice exploration and geotechnical work was successfully completed, and
ECS is familiar with the existing site and is recommended that ECS Carolina, LLP be
contracted to perform the construction materials testing services.

NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, North
Carolina, that it does hereby authorize the execution of an agreement for Construction
Materials Testing Services with ECS Carolinas, LLP and being more fully articulated in
Attachment “A” to this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the Agreement and
other applicable documents as necessary to proceed with this work.



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 4 of 19

The foregoing Resolution 12-38, upon motion of Council Member ________________ and
second by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote
received the following votes and was ______________ on this the ___ day of __________ 2011:
YES: . NO: . ABSTAIN: . ABSENT: .

_____________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Approved to Legal Form:

________________________________
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney

Reference: Minute Book 42, pp. **.



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 5 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 6 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 7 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 8 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 9 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 10 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 11 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 12 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 13 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 14 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 15 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 16 of 19



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 17 of 19

O R D I N A N C E 13-37

FY 2012—2013 Budget Amendment # 40
AN AMENDMENT

TO THE CIP SEWER FUND
For Post-Bid Estimates

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 14 June 2012 adopted the FY12-13
Annual Operating Budget; and

WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital
projects related to the Sewer Fund, said fund referred to as 44: CIP Sewer Fund; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual
operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that
the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately
upon approval of the City Council:



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 18 of 19

FUNDS:

PROJECT: Water Reclamation Facility Renovation

Approved Current

11-Apr-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Transfer from Cap Reserve Utilities Fund 44-444-4610-71 70,000$ -$ -$ -$

44-847-3690-71 -$ 779,110$ -$ 779,110$

44-847-3660-01 -$ 15,615,000$ -$ 15,615,000$

44-847-3660-02 -$ 1,000,000$ -$ 1,000,000$

State CWMTF Grant 44-847-4581-61 -$ 600,000$ -$ 600,000$

SRF Loan - Additional 44-847-4582-21 -$ 500,000$ -$ 500,000$

44-847-4610-79 -$ 103,360$ -$ 103,360$

Total 70,000$ 18,597,470$ -$ 18,597,470$

18,597,470$

Approved Current

11-Apr-11 Budget Amendment Revised

44-847-4610-01 -$ -$ -$ -$

44-847-5102-00 2,000$ 2,500$ -$ 2,500$

Engineering Preliminary Engineering Report 44-847-5103-01 68,000$ 68,000$ -$ 68,000$

44-847-2230-03 -$ 775,125$ -$ 775,125$

44-847-2230-04 -$ 32,105$ -$ 32,105$

44-847-2230-05 -$ 39,380$ -$ 39,380$

44-847-2230-06 -$ 100,000$ 15,810$ 115,810$

44-847-4610-02 -$ -$ -$ -$

44-847-2230-10 -$ 500,000$ -$ 500,000$

44-847-4990-99 -$ -$ -$ -$

44-847-5071-00 -$ 27,000$ -$ 27,000$

44-847-5104-00 -$ 15,519,000$ -$ 15,519,000$

44-847-6700-01 -$ 367,300$ -$ 367,300$

Transfer to Capital Reserve Utilities 44-847-5610-70 -$ 379,110$ -$ 379,110$

44-847-9990-10 -$ 672,950$ (15,810)$ 657,140$

44-847-9990-20 -$ 115,000$ -$ 115,000$

Total 70,000$ 18,597,470$ -$ 18,597,470$

18,597,470$

Variance -$

24 June 13; CAF 13-74; Res 13-51; Ord 13-37; BA #40

To amend the project budget for changes in post-bid estimates. ECS Carolinas, LLP performed the

subsurface exploration and geotechnical engineering work and it is being recommended by McGill

Associates that they perform the Construction Materials Testing Services. The estimated cost to perform

this work is $115,810 and the current budget is $100,000. The additional cost is being budgeted from the

Contingency line item.

26 Nov 12: CAF 12-115; Res 12-73; Ord 12-66; BA#12; MB42,p Notification of approval of CWMTF grant: $600,000. Transfer funds previously transferred in from Capital

Reserve Utilities back to that fund.

Notes:

11 Apr 11: CAF 11-70; Res 11-44, Ord 11-29; MB42, p.

14 Nov 11: CAF 11-B-134; Res 11-111; Ord 11-62; MB42, p.

10 Oct 11: CAF 11-134; MB42, p.

26 Oct 11: CAF 11-A-134; Res 11-103; MB42, p.

Reference:

Authorized application for grant/loan

Approved PER work and established project ordinance: $70,000

Mini-Brooks discussion

Approved Mini-Brooks exemption

28 Nov 11: CAF 11-C-134, Ord 11-62, MB42, p

CG&L = Construction Grants & Loans from State of NC, DENR`

First budget amendment to Project Ordinance: $1,033,900

Engineering Geotechnical

Engineering Bidding & Aw ard Phase

Phase 2 is design engineering, permitting, bidding and project contract award: $1,044,610

12 Dec 11: CAF 11-D-134, Ord 11-62, MB42, p

Ordinance 13-37

Transfer from Cap Reserve Utilities Fund

Transfer from Rate Stabilization Fund

To amend the project budget for changes in post-bid estimates. The transfer side of Fund 79 was part of

BA#10; therefore that side of the transaction is not being duplicated here. The project originally called for

a transfer in from CR Utilities (Fund 70). After notification of the $600,000 CWMTF Grant was received,

the project budget was amended to revert those funds back to CR Utilities ($379,110). After all bids and

costs were received, it has been determined that $400,000of those funds are needed to complete the

funding of this project, with the remaining $103,360 to come from the Rate Stabilization Fund

25 June 12: CAF 12-75; Ord 12-42; BA# 53; MB42,p 492

14 Jan 13: CAF 13-12; Res 13-09; Ord 13-08; BA #22

Amend for decrease in estimated closing fees for grant and loan administration (23,190)
Phase 3 is construction and is estimated at $14,075,000

Phase 1 was Preliminary Engineering & legal/admin: $70,000

Admin, Permitting and Legal Fees

Phase 2

Phase 3

Admin, Permitting and Legal Fees-design phase

Closing Fee-grant and loan administration

Engineering Permitting Adminstration

14 Feb 11: CAF 11-38; Res 11-12; MB 42, p.

Construction Admin & Inspection

Land Acquisition

Construction Costs

Contingency

Legal/Administrative

Engineering Contingency

Project Budget Created on 11 Apr 11

State Revolving Loan

State RFL Grant

award of contract to McGill for engineering/deisgn phase and establishing total project budget

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Phase 1

44: CIP SEWER

Contingencies & Other

Engineering Design

Captial Outlay Reserve--not yet aw arded

FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #40

Budget Amendment #5 to this Capital/Grant Project



CAF 13-74: 24 June 13 Council Meeting
Page 19 of 19

The foregoing Ordinance 13-37, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and
was **** on this the 20th day of June 2013: YES: . NO: . ABSTAIN: . ABSENT: .

___________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:
_______________________________
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk

Reference: Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 13-74

__________

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON

I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-37 adopted by the
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ________________ 2013. This Ordinance is
recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p.***.

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****.
_________________________
Esther McCrackin
City Clerk
City of Henderson, North Carolina

Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________
Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director

Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager



CAF 13-75: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 1 of 4

______________________________________
20 June 2012

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council

FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager

RE: CAF: 13-75
Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-39, FY13 Budget Amendment #41, Budgeting
Proceeds of Lease Purchase Financing Agreement with SunTrust Equipment Finance &
Leasing Corporation

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Recommendation:

 Approval of Ordinance 13-39, FY13 Budget Amendment #41, budgeting the proceeds of a Lease
Purchase Financing Agreement with SunTrust Equipment Finance & Leasing Corporation

Executive Summary

On 8 April 2013, Council approved Resolution 13-31, approving financing terms with SunTrust
Equipment Finance & Leasing Corporation, for the purchase of four pieces of equipment as
follows:

Tractor/bushhog and dump truck for Sewer Collection
Backhoe and service truck for Water Distribution

The budget ordinance before you is for the purpose of budgeting the receipt of the financing
proceeds and the corresponding payments of the equipment once they have been received.

Enclosures

1. Ordinance 13-39

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _____________

Council Meeting: 24 June 13 Short Reg. Meeting



CAF 13-75: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 2 of 4

O R D I N A N C E 13-39

Council Member ** introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member
** and read:

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 -- 2013 BUDGET
BUDGET AMENDMENT #41

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its
FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a lease purchase financial arrangement with SunTrust
Equipment Finance & Leasing Corporation at its meeting on 8 April 2013 via Resolution
13-31; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual
operating budget to incorporate the terms of the financing agreement, said amendment
being incorporated into this Ordinance; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that
the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council:



CAF 13-75: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 3 of 4

Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Lease Proceeds 30-300-457500 -$ -$ 145,000$ 145,000$

-$ -$ -$ -$

Total -$ -$ 145,000$ 145,000$

145,000$

Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Water Distribution Capital Outlay > $5,000 30-318-507405 -$ -$ 145,000$ 145,000$

-$ -$ -$ -$

Total -$ -$ 145,000$ 145,000$

145,000$

Variance -$

Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Lease Proceeds 31-310-457500 -$ -$ 150,000$ 150,000$

-$ -$ -$ -$

Total -$ -$ 150,000$ 150,000$

150,000$

Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Sewer Collection Capital Outlay > $5,000 31-828-507405 -$ -$ 150,000$ 150,000$

-$ -$ -$ -$

Total -$ -$ 150,000$ 150,000$

150,000$

Variance -$

31: SEWER FUND EXPENDITURES

30: Water Fund and 31: Sewer FundFUNDS:

30: WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

30: WATER FUND REVENUES

Reference:
CAF# 13-75; Ordinance #13-39: BA# 41

FY 12-13 Budget Amendment #41

Notes:
To budget for proceeds of lease purchase financing that was approved by Council at its regular meeting on

April 8, 2013. Four pieces of equipment are included in this financing: a backhoe and service truck for Water

Distribution and a tractor/bushhog and dump truck for Sewer Collection.

31: SEWER FUND REVENUES

Ordinance 13-39

The foregoing Ordinance 13-39, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and
was *** on this the 24 day of June 2013: YES: ***. NO: **. ABSTAIN: **. ABSENT: **.

___________________________________
James D. O’Geary, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk

Reference: Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-75

____________



CAF 13-75: 24 June 2013 Meeting
Page 4 of 4

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
CITY OF HENDERSON

I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-39 adopted by the
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 24 June 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***.

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of June 2013.

_________________________
Esther J. McCrackin
City Clerk
City of Henderson, North Carolina

Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________
Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director

Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager



1

________________________________________

18 June 2013

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council

FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager

RE: CM 13-13: Declaration of Surplus Property.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Resolution 9-10, property identified in the attached memo dated 17 June 2013 from
Fiscal Compliance Officer Edna Vaught is declared surplus and will be auctioned on GovDeals.
No action is required of Council; however, it is felt appropriate to advise Council of said
declaration and to offer an opportunity for questions and/or objections to the proposed sale.

City Council Memo
Office of City Manager

P. O. Box 1434
Henderson, NC 27536

252.430.5701

Agenda Item: _________

Council Meeting: 24 June 13 Short Reg. Meeting



2



3



Last Updated: 6/21/2013 12:25 PM

Date Time Event Location

July 1
st

3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers

July 1st 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers

July 2
nd

3:30 PM
Henderson Zoning Board of

Adjustment
City Council Chambers

July 4
th City Hall

Closed
HAPPY FOURTH OF JULY

CITY HALL CLOSED

July 8
th

6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers

July 9
th

3:00 PM
Henderson Appearance

Committee
City Council Chambers

July 12
th

12:00 PM
Henderson-Vance Park &
Recreations Commission

Aycock Recreation Center

July 18
th

7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers

July 22nd 6:00 PM
City Council Meeting

Work Session to Follow
City Council Chambers

July 26
th

10:00 AM
Henderson-Vance E911
Advisory Board Meeting

E911 Operations Center

Aug 5th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers

Aug 6
th

3:30 PM
Henderson Zoning Board of

Adjustment
City Council Chambers

Aug 8th 12:00 PM
Henderson-Vance Park &
Recreations Commission

Aycock Recreation Center

Aug 12
th

12:00 PM KLRW Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference Room

Aug 12th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers

Aug 13
th

3:00 PM
Henderson Community

Appearance Commission
City Council Chambers

Aug 26th 6:00 p.m.
City Council Meeting

Work Session to Follow
City Council Chambers

Sept 2
City Hall

Closed
Labor Day Holiday Happy Holiday

Sept 9 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers

Sept 9 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers

Sept 10 3:30 PM
Henderson Zoning Board of

Adjustment
City Council Chambers

Meetings and Events Calendar

Happy Fourth of July














	Agenda
	10 June Minutes
	Budget Meeting #5 Minutes
	Demolition of four properties O 13-03, 13-04, 13-05, 13-06.pdf
	FY14 budget adoption & Establish Fire Inspection Fees O 13-38 and O 13-19.pdf
	ECS Contract Approval  re HWRF Improvements R 13-51.pdf
	Budgeting Proceeds of Lease Purchase
	Surplus Property
	Meetings and Event Calendar
	E-911 Report

